
Any person may speak for three (3) minutes on any agenda item; however, total public input per item is not to exceed 15 minutes, extended at the discretion of the 
City Council.  This rule does not apply to public hearings. Non-timed items may be taken up at any unspecified time. 

I. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL: 6:00 p.m. 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  
III. ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA: Move to accept agenda as posted, or move to add or delete items. 

  Urgency Items: To add item, Council is required to make a majority decision that an urgency 
exists (as defined in the Brown Act) and a 2/3rds determination that the need to 
take action arose subsequent to the Agenda being posted. 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA: The following Consent Agenda items are expected to be routine and noncontroversial.  They will be acted upon by 
the Council at one time without any discussion.  Any Council Member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Agenda for discussion under the regular Agenda.  Removed items will be considered following the 
Consent Calendar portion of this agenda. 

 A. Ordinances: Waive reading except by title, of any ordinances under consideration at this 
meeting for either introduction or passage per Government Code Section 36934. 

 B. Minutes: Approve minutes of the special City Council Meeting of July 12, 2016 and the 
regular City Council meeting of July 19, 2016. 

 C. Warrants: Approve the warrant registers of August 5, 2016. 

 D. Application 2016-020: Approve Application No. 2016-020 with staff recommendations, for the Annual 
Lake County Fair Opening Day Parade to take place September 1, 2016.  

 E. Application 2016-021: Approve Application No. 2016-021 with staff recommendations, for the annual 
Splash-In event, to take place September 16-17, 2016. 

 F. Application 2016-022: Approve Application No. 2016-022 with staff recommendations for the 2016 
Catfish Derby to be held August 26-27, 2016. 

 G. Memorandum of Understanding:  
Lakeport Employee’s Association: 

Adopt a proposed resolution approving the Memorandum of Understanding 
between the Lakeport Employee’s Association for the period August 16, 2016 
through June 30, 2017, and authorizing its execution. 

 H. Appropriations Limit: Approve the appropriations limit of $11,109,063 for Fiscal Year 2016-17 for the 
City of Lakeport and adopt the proposed resolution. 

 I. Bevins Court Parking Lease: Approve the lease for fair parking at 902 Bevins Court with the 49th District 
Agricultural Association and authorize the City Manager to execute the lease. 

 J. Temporary Handicap Parking: Approve the designated temporary disabled parking in the 200 block of C Street, 
between South Forbes Street and the C street gate to the Fairgrounds, from 4:00 
p.m. on Thursday, September 1st to Midnight on Sunday, September 4th, 2016. 

 K. Conflict of Interest Code Review: Receive and file the 2016 Local Agency Biennial Notice regarding the City of 
Lakeport's Conflict of Interest Code. 

 L. Ordinance Adoption: Conduct a second reading of an ordinance of the City Council of the City of 
Lakeport imposing a transactions and use tax of one cent to be administered by 
the State Board of Equalization. 

V. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS/REQUESTS:  

 A. Citizen Input: Any person may speak for 3 minutes about any subject within the authority of the City Council, provided that the 
subject is not already on tonight’s agenda.  Persons wishing to address the City Council are required to complete a 
Citizen’s Input form and submit it to the City Clerk prior to the meeting being called to order.  While not required, 
please state your name and address for the record.  NOTE: Per Government Code §54954.3(a), the City Council 
cannot take action or express a consensus of approval or disapproval on any public comments regarding matters 
which do not appear on the printed agenda. 

 

 

 

 

 AGENDA 
 REGULAR MEETING OF THE LAKEPORT CITY COUNCIL 
 (ALSO MEETS AS THE CITY OF LAKEPORT MUNICIPAL SEWER DISTRICT, THE LAKEPORT INDUSTRIAL 
 DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, THE MUNICIPAL FINANCING AGENCY OF LAKEPORT and THE SUCCESOR 
 AGENCY TO THE LAKEPORT REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY) 
 Tuesday, August 16, 2016 
 City Council Chambers, 225 Park Street, Lakeport, California 95453 



City Council Agenda of August 16, 2016  Page 2 

  Presentation: LMSA Presentation of donation by the Lakeport Main Street Association for the Annual 
Fireworks Show in Library Park. 

  Presentation:  Road Criterium Bike 
Racing 

Presentation by Dave Garzoli of the Main Street Elite Bicycle Team on Road 
Criterium Bicycle Racing. 

VI. COUNCIL BUSINESS  

 A. Police Lieutenant:  

  1. School Resource Officer: Approve proposed Memorandum of Understanding between the Lakeport 
Unified School District and the City of Lakeport for the services of a School 
Resource Officer and authorize the City Manager to sign. 

VII. CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS  

 A. Miscellaneous Reports, if any:  

VIII. ADJOURNMENT:  Adjourn  

Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office at 225 
Park Street, Lakeport, California, during normal business hours.  Such documents are also available on the City of Lakeport’s website, www.cityoflakeport.com, subject to 
staff’s ability to post the documents before the meeting. 

The City of Lakeport, in complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), requests individuals who require special accommodations to access, attend and/or 
participate in the City meeting due to disability, to please contact the City Clerk’s Office, (707) 263-5615, 72 hours prior to the scheduled meeting to ensure reasonable 
accommodations are provided. 

 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Hilary Britton, Deputy City Clerk 

http://www.cityoflakeport.com/


 
 

 
 

ATTENDANCE: City Manager Silveira welcomed the public to the town hall 
meeting at 6:00 p.m.  Mayor Spillman, Council Member Parlet, 
Council Member Scheel and Council Member Turner were 
present.  Council Member Mattina was absent. 

COMMUNITY PRIORITIES TOWN 
HALL:   

Finance Director Buffalo and City Manager Margaret Silveira gave 
an interactive presentation on the General Fund with an 
opportunity for public input. Questions and comments were 
received from the public.  

ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Spillman adjourned the meeting at 8:35 p.m. 

       
 
 

 
____________________________________ 
Marc Spillman, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Kelly Buendia, City Clerk 

 

Minutes 
NOTICE AND CALL OF SPECIAL TOWN HALL MEETING  

OF THE LAKEPORT CITY COUNCIL 
Tuesday, July 12, 2016 

6:00 P.M. 



 

 CLOSED SESSION: Mayor Spillman called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm, and adjourned to closed 
session at 5:31 pm for the following item: 

1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Gov. Code § 54957.6): Name 
of City Negotiator to Attend Closed Session:  Rick Haeg and 
Administrative Services Director Kelly Buendia; Employee Organization:  
Lakeport Employees’ Association. 

 REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION: Mayor Spillman reported there was no reportable action out of closed session. 

I. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL: Mayor Spillman called the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Lakeport to order at 6:01 p.m. with Council Members Turner, Parlet, Mattina and 
Scheel present. 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Dennis Rollins. 

III. ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA: A motion was made by Council Member Scheel, seconded by Council Member 
Mattina, and unanimously carried by voice vote, to accept agenda as posted. 

  Urgency Items: There were no urgency items. 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA: The following Consent Agenda items are expected to be routine and noncontroversial.  They will be acted upon by 
the Council at one time without any discussion.  Any Council Member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Agenda for discussion under the regular Agenda.  Removed items will be considered following the 
Consent Calendar portion of this agenda. 

 A. Ordinances: Waive reading except by title, of any ordinances under consideration at this 
meeting for either introduction or passage per Government Code Section 36934. 

 B. Minutes: Approve minutes of the regular City Council meeting of July 05, 2016. 

 C. Warrants: Approve the warrant registers of July 11, 2016. 

 D. Application 2016-019: Approve Application No. 2016-019 with staff recommendations for the SUP with 
the People Paddle Board Demo to be held August 15, 2016 in Library Park at the 
First Street boat launch. 

 E. Unrepresented Employees 
Compensation and Benefits Program: 

Adopt a proposed resolution approving the Compensation and Benefits Program 
the Lakeport Unrepresented Employees for the period July 19, 2016 through July 
18, 2017, and authorizing its execution. 

  Vote on Consent Agenda: A motion was made by Council Member Scheel, seconded by Council Member 
Mattina, and unanimously carried by voice vote, to approve the consent agenda, 
Items A-E. 

V. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS/REQUESTS:  

 A. Citizen Input: Ray Somberg requested lowering fees on 10 Queen Anne Way with the change in 
zoning.  He would like his sewer bond fee adjusted so it is more equitable with 
other properties in the CLMSD South Assessment District 91-1. 

Dennis Rollins gave an update on Westside Park and reminded Council that 
Grillin’ on the Green will be August 6, 2016. 

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  

 A. Community Development Director  

  1. 2016 Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) 
Application: 

The Staff report was presented by Community Development Director Ingram. 

Mayor Spillman opened the public hearing at 6:30 p.m. 

Mayor Spillman closed the public hearing at 6:30 p.m. 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE LAKEPORT CITY COUNCIL 

(ALSO MEETS AS THE CITY OF LAKEPORT MUNICIPAL SEWER DISTRICT, THE LAKEPORT INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, THE 
MUNICIPAL FINANCING AGENCY OF LAKEPORT and THE SUCCESOR AGENCY TO THE LAKEPORT REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY) 

Tuesday, July 19, 2016 



City Council Minutes of July 19, 2016  Page 2 

A motion was made by Council Member Mattina, seconded by Council Member 
Scheel, and unanimously carried by voice vote, to approve and adopt a proposed 
resolution approving a 2016 application for funding, authorizing submittal 
signatory, and execution of a grant agreement and any amendments thereto 
from the general allocation of the state CDBG Program upon approval. 

 B. City Manager/City Clerk  

  1. Introduce Ordinance:  Sales Tax 
Measure 

The Staff report was presented by City Manager Silveira and City Clerk Buendia. 
 
 Mayor Spillman opened the public hearing at 6:52 p.m. 
 
Wilda Shock spoke in favor of the proposed sales tax measure. 
 
Paula Capps spoke against the proposed sales tax measure.  She would prefer to 
see cuts made in other areas and used for roads and increase police services. 
 
Dennis Rollins spoke in favor of the sales tax measure. 
 
Mayor Spillman closed the public hearing at 7:05 pm. 
 
A motion was made by Council Member Scheel, seconded by Council Member 
Turner, and unanimously carried by voice vote, to introduce an ordinance of the 
City Council of the City of Lakeport imposing a transactions and use tax to be 
administered by the State Board of Equalization. 

A motion was made by Council Member Scheel, seconded by Council Member 
Parlet, and unanimously carried by voice vote, to approve a resolution of the City 
Council of the City of Lakeport calling for, providing for, and giving notice of the 
general municipal election to be held in the City of Lakeport, County of Lake, 
State of California, on the 8th day of November, 2016, for the purpose of 
submitting to the voters, measure Z to be voted on at said election, establishing 
deadlines for direct and rebuttal arguments, providing for the preparation of an 
impartial analysis, and requesting approval of the Lake County Board of 
Supervisors for election services to be provided by the County Elections Official. 

VII. COUNCIL BUSINESS:  

 A. City Manager  

  1. Westside Community Park Dog 
Park: 

The Staff report was presented by City Manager Silveira. 

Dennis Rollins spoke in favor of naming the dog park in honor of Ron Raetz, and 
he gave some history on Mr. Raetz's contributions to the community and the 
Park. 

Wilda Shock spoke in favor of the name. 

A motion was made by Council Member Mattina, seconded by Council Member 
Turner, and unanimously carried by voice vote, to accept the Westside 
Community Park Committee recommended naming of the dog park the "Ron 
Raetz Dog Park", and authorize staff to work with the Committee in placing 
appropriate signage. 

  2. League of California Cities 
Annual Meeting: The Staff report was presented by City Manager Silveira 

Council Member Mattina nominated Council Member Turner as the Voting 
Delegate, Council Member Scheel as the First Alternate, and Council Member 
Mattina as the Second Alternate, Council Member Scheel seconded the 
nominations, and the Council unanimously approved by voice vote, the 
appointment of the voting delegate, first alternate and second alternate voting 
delegate for the League of California Cities Annual Conference to be held 
October 5 through October 7, 2016, in Long Beach, California. 



City Council Minutes of July 19, 2016  Page 3 

A motion was made by Council Member Mattina, seconded by Council Member 
Scheel, and unanimously carried by voice vote, to approve cancellation of the 
October 4, 2016, City Council Meeting. 

  3. National Night Out The Staff report was presented by City Manager Silveira. 

Chief Rasmussen gave the Council background on the proposed street closures 
for National Night Out. 

George Spurr wanted to verify there would be notification for the earlier start 
time of the Council meeting. 

A motion was made by Council Member Turner, seconded by Council Member 
Mattina, and unanimously carried by voice vote, to approve the change of start 
time for the August 2, 2016, Lakeport City Council Meeting to 5:00 p.m. 

A motion was made by Council Member Turner, seconded by Council Member 
Mattina, and unanimously carried by voice vote, to approve the participation of 
the City of Lakeport in the National Night Out event on August 2, 2016, with 
street closures. 

 B. Community Development Director  

  1. Parking Resolution:  Bevins 
Street 

The Staff report was presented by Community Development Director Ingram 

Paula Capps spoke in favor of restricting parking in the proposed no parking 
zone.  She would like to see the zone expanded to the north entrance. 

A motion was made by Council Member Scheel, seconded by Council Member 
Mattina, and unanimously carried by voice vote, to adopt a proposed resolution 
rescinding Resolution No. 2538 (2015) and designating the locations of 
Prohibited Parking Zones within the City of Lakeport, and further directed staff 
have TSAC look into additional no parking zones in that area. 

VIII. CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS: 

 A. Miscellaneous Reports, if any: City Manager Silveira will be back on vacation, Community Development Director 
Ingram will be acting City Manager on Wednesday, and then Chief Rasmussen 
will be acting City Manager for the remainder of the week. 

City Attorney Ruderman had nothing to report. 

Administrative Services Director Buendia reported that the department is busy 
with elections, and records requests,  as well as recruiting for Engineer/Public 
Works Director and Water Operators. 

Public Works Superintendent Grider reported that there is a lot going on with the 
Downtown Improvement Project, working day and night shifts. 

Finance Director Feth-Michel is getting acclimated to the job and City Hall. 

Chief Rasmussen has been involved in the National Night Out planning. 

Community Development Director Ingram reported that Downtown 
Improvement Project is moving forward, they are working with PG&E regarding 
issues as they are uncovered. 

Council Member Turner recommended attendance at the Shakespeare in the 
Park on performances scheduled for July 30 & 31, 2016. 

Council Member Mattina advised she will attend the LAFCo meeting tomorrow, 
and is in contact with a Criterium bike racing group interested in bringing an 
event to Lakeport.  

Council Member Parlet was impressed with the staff's performance at the last 
Town Hall. 

Council Member Scheel echoed Parlet's compliments, and advised of the 
following weekend events: Kickin’ in the Country Street Dance on Thursday, 



City Council Minutes of July 19, 2016  Page 4 

Friday Night Concert in the Park, and Kiss My Clear Lake Bass fundraiser on 
Sunday. 

Mayor Spillman had no report. 

IX. ADJOURNMENT:  Mayor Spillman adjourned the meeting at 7:55 

p.m.  

 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Marc Spillman, Mayor 

 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Hilary Britton, Deputy City Clerk 



 
 
 
 

225 PARK STREET • LAKEPORT, CALIFORNIA 95453 • TELEPHONE (707) 263-5615 • FAX (707) 263-8584 
 

CITY OF LAKEPORT 
Over 125 years of community 
pride, progress and service 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8/10/2016 
 
 
I hereby certify that the attached list of warrants has been audited, 
extensions are proper, purchase orders have been issued, and department 
heads have been given the opportunity to review and sign claim forms. 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Ginny Feth-Michel 
 Interim Finance Director 
 
 



8/5/2016 6:02:38 PM Page 1 of 6

Bank Transaction Report
Lakeport, CA Transaction Detail

Issued Date Range: 07/12/2016 - 08/05/2016

Cleared Date Range:  -

Cleared
Date Number Description Module Status AmountType

Issued
Date

Bank Account: 15-0352000798 - POOLED CASH BANK

-15,226.00OutstandingAccounts PayableHOSPITALITY & NETWORK DEVELOPMENT SVCS, INC.49558 Check07/12/2016

-34,774.00OutstandingAccounts PayableHOSPITALITY & NETWORK DEVELOPMENT SVCS, INC.49559 Check07/12/2016

-401.00OutstandingAccounts PayableSAVANNAH MEYER49560 Check07/13/2016

-59,767.16OutstandingAccounts PayableLAKEPORT DISPOSAL, INC.49561 Check07/14/2016

-869.37OutstandingAccounts PayableAFLAC49562 Check07/20/2016

-835.00OutstandingAccounts PayableAIRMED CARE NETWORK49563 Check07/20/2016

-693.67OutstandingAccounts PayableCA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT49564 Check07/20/2016

-18,377.83OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERS49565 Check07/20/2016

-500.00OutstandingAccounts PayableELIZABETH LAMBERT49566 Check07/20/2016

-200.00OutstandingAccounts PayableFRANCHISE TAX BOARD49567 Check07/20/2016

-25.00OutstandingAccounts PayableJACQUELINE M. STOEBE49568 Check07/20/2016

-330.00OutstandingAccounts PayableLAKEPORT EMPLOYEE'S ASSOC49569 Check07/20/2016

-208.25OutstandingAccounts PayableLEGALSHIELD49570 Check07/20/2016

-405.00OutstandingAccounts PayableLPOA49571 Check07/20/2016

-1,200.00OutstandingAccounts PayableNATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION49572 Check07/20/2016

-250.00OutstandingAccounts PayableREDWOOD CREDIT UNION49573 Check07/20/2016

-1,488.50OutstandingAccounts PayableVALIC - C/O JP MORGAN CHASE49574 Check07/20/2016

-3,821.74OutstandingAccounts PayableIRSDFT0000286 Bank Draft07/20/2016

-4,919.34OutstandingAccounts PayableCA EMP DEVELOPMENT DEPTDFT0000287 Bank Draft07/20/2016

-1,195.04OutstandingAccounts PayableCA EMP DEVELOPMENT DEPTDFT0000288 Bank Draft07/20/2016

-16,333.17OutstandingAccounts PayableIRSDFT0000289 Bank Draft07/20/2016

-816.60OutstandingAccounts PayableIRSDFT0000290 Bank Draft07/20/2016

-1,600.00OutstandingAccounts PayableACTION SANITARY, INC.49576 Check07/26/2016

-4,590.00OutstandingAccounts PayableADAMS ASHBY GROUP, LLC.49577 Check07/26/2016

-120.80OutstandingAccounts PayableADVANCED COMMUNICATIONS49578 Check07/26/2016

-50.00OutstandingAccounts PayableALFREDO OLLOQUI49579 Check07/26/2016

-265.00OutstandingAccounts PayableALL IN ONE AUTO REPAIR & TOWING49580 Check07/26/2016

-478.00OutstandingAccounts PayableALPHA ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES49581 Check07/26/2016

-1,085.42OutstandingAccounts PayableAQUA PRODUCTS49582 Check07/26/2016

-1,247.85OutstandingAccounts PayableAT&T49583 Check07/26/2016

-175,000.00OutstandingAccounts PayableAVENGER FIBERGLASS MFG CO., INC.49584 Check07/26/2016

-150.00OutstandingAccounts PayableBIT SCULPTOR49585 Check07/26/2016

-574.24OutstandingAccounts PayableBORGES & MAHONEY INC.49586 Check07/26/2016

-600.00OutstandingAccounts PayableBRIAN  DENTON49587 Check07/26/2016

-1,750.00OutstandingAccounts PayableCHRISTA ALANA NUNEZ49588 Check07/26/2016

-3,693.60OutstandingAccounts PayableCLEARLAKE REDI-MIX INC.49589 Check07/26/2016



Issued Date Range: 07/12/2016 - 08/05/2016     Cleared Date Range:  -Bank Transaction Report

8/5/2016 6:02:38 PM Page 2 of 6

Cleared
Date Number Description Module Status AmountType

Issued
Date

-7,416.44OutstandingAccounts PayableCOLANTUANO, HIGHSMITH &49590 Check07/26/2016

-10,250.00OutstandingAccounts PayableCOMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES49591 Check07/26/2016

-1,500.00OutstandingAccounts PayableCONSER LAND SURVEYING49592 Check07/26/2016

-581.50OutstandingAccounts PayableCOUNTY OF LAKE-ANIMAL CONTROL49593 Check07/26/2016

-21,761.85OutstandingAccounts PayableCOUNTY OF LAKE-SPECIAL DIST49594 Check07/26/2016

-675.00OutstandingAccounts PayableDEBRA  ENGLAND49595 Check07/26/2016

-202.95OutstandingAccounts PayableDEEP VALLEY SECURITY49596 Check07/26/2016

-201.00OutstandingAccounts PayableDEPT OF JUSTICE49597 Check07/26/2016

-61,900.00OutstandingAccounts PayableDESIGN WORKSHOP, INC.49598 Check07/26/2016

-36,520.00OutstandingAccounts PayableDESIGN WORKSHOP, INC.49599 Check07/26/2016

-5,119.70OutstandingAccounts PayableEWING & ASSOCIATES49600 Check07/26/2016

-100.07OutstandingAccounts PayableFERRELLGAS49601 Check07/26/2016

-34,900.00OutstandingAccounts PayableGARAVAGLIA ARCHITECTURE, INC.49602 Check07/26/2016

-350,501.74OutstandingAccounts PayableGRANITE CONSTRUCTION COMPANY49603 Check07/26/2016

-362.34OutstandingAccounts PayableHACH CHEMICAL COMPANY49604 Check07/26/2016

-557.45OutstandingAccounts PayableINTERSTATE BATTERY SYSTEM49605 Check07/26/2016

-221.72OutstandingAccounts PayableIT'S ABOUT TIME, INC49606 Check07/26/2016

-9,925.00OutstandingAccounts PayableJJACPA, INC.49607 Check07/26/2016

-400.00OutstandingAccounts PayableJONES TOWING49608 Check07/26/2016

-70.57OutstandingAccounts PayableKELSEYVILLE LUMBER49609 Check07/26/2016

-124.80OutstandingAccounts PayableKELSEYVILLE SEPTIC & SANITARY49610 Check07/26/2016

-262.00OutstandingAccounts PayableKELSEYVILLE TNT MINI STORAGE49611 Check07/26/2016

-867.46OutstandingAccounts PayableLAKE COUNTY ELECTRIC SUPPLY49612 Check07/26/2016

-835.11OutstandingAccounts PayableLAKE COUNTY RECORD BEE49613 Check07/26/2016

59,767.16OutstandingAccounts PayableLAKEPORT DISPOSAL, INC.  Reversal49614 Check Reversal07/26/2016

-59,767.16OutstandingAccounts PayableLAKEPORT DISPOSAL, INC.49614 Check07/26/2016

-30.00OutstandingAccounts PayableLEXIS NEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS49615 Check07/26/2016

-3,687.22OutstandingAccounts PayableMC CROMETER, INC.49616 Check07/26/2016

-1,034.00OutstandingAccounts PayableMEDIACOM49617 Check07/26/2016

-910.56OutstandingAccounts PayableMENDO MILL & LUMBER CO.49618 Check07/26/2016

-1,096.94OutstandingAccounts PayableNAPA AUTO - LAKE PARTS49619 Check07/26/2016

-558.00OutstandingAccounts PayableOCCU-MED, LTD.49620 Check07/26/2016

-281.00OutstandingAccounts PayableOCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS OF CALIF49621 Check07/26/2016

-12,986.00OutstandingAccounts PayableOE PUBLIC & MISC EE'S49622 Check07/26/2016

-12.72OutstandingAccounts PayableO'REILLY AUTO PARTS49623 Check07/26/2016

-27,341.53OutstandingAccounts PayablePACE ENGINEERING, INC.49624 Check07/26/2016

-2,356.12OutstandingAccounts PayablePACE SUPPLY #03391-0049625 Check07/26/2016

-12,178.66OutstandingAccounts PayablePAUL R. CURREN49626 Check07/26/2016

-165.00OutstandingAccounts PayablePEOPLE SERVICES, INC.49627 Check07/26/2016

-119.00OutstandingAccounts PayablePERFORMANCE MECHANICAL49628 Check07/26/2016

-39,550.87OutstandingAccounts PayablePG&E VO24810449629 Check07/26/2016

-194.40OutstandingAccounts PayablePITNEY BOWES - SUPPLIES49630 Check07/26/2016

-673.41OutstandingAccounts PayablePOLLARD WATER49631 Check07/26/2016



Issued Date Range: 07/12/2016 - 08/05/2016     Cleared Date Range:  -Bank Transaction Report

8/5/2016 6:02:38 PM Page 3 of 6

Cleared
Date Number Description Module Status AmountType

Issued
Date

-2,556.75OutstandingAccounts PayableQUALITY DOOR, TRIM & CABINETS49632 Check07/26/2016

-759.75OutstandingAccounts PayableR.B.  PETERS49633 Check07/26/2016

-138.72OutstandingAccounts PayableR.E.M.I.F.49634 Check07/26/2016

-5,587.50OutstandingAccounts PayableRADCON49635 Check07/26/2016

-178.12OutstandingAccounts PayableRAINBOW AGRICULTURAL SERVICES49636 Check07/26/2016

-125.00OutstandingAccounts PayableRB PEST CONTROL49637 Check07/26/2016

-24.40OutstandingAccounts PayableRICOH USA, INC.49638 Check07/26/2016

-1,046.02OutstandingAccounts PayableRICOH, USA49639 Check07/26/2016

-1,085.38OutstandingAccounts PayableROYAL AUTOMOTIVE CENTER49640 Check07/26/2016

-250.00OutstandingAccounts PayableS & K AUTOMOTIVE & TOWING49641 Check07/26/2016

-2,057.50OutstandingAccounts PayableSHN CONSULTING ENGINEERS & GEO49642 Check07/26/2016

-47.38OutstandingAccounts PayableSHRED-IT USA LLC49643 Check07/26/2016

-907.92OutstandingAccounts PayableSTAPLES CREDIT PLAN49644 Check07/26/2016

-35.00OutstandingAccounts PayableSUTTER LAKESIDE HOSPITAL49645 Check07/26/2016

-12,078.27OutstandingAccounts PayableTHE WORKS INC/MLS - LSQ FUNDING GROUP49646 Check07/26/2016

-224.94OutstandingAccounts PayableTOM  CARLTON49647 Check07/26/2016

-233.68OutstandingAccounts PayableTRI-CITIES ANSWERING SERVICE49648 Check07/26/2016

-36.20OutstandingAccounts PayableTYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC.49649 Check07/26/2016

-168.75OutstandingAccounts PayableUKIAH VALLEY MEDICAL CENTER49650 Check07/26/2016

-6,438.53OutstandingAccounts PayableUSA BLUE BOOK49651 Check07/26/2016

-85.00OutstandingAccounts PayableVALLEY TOXICOLOGY SERVICES INC49652 Check07/26/2016

-374.64OutstandingAccounts PayableVERIZON WIRELESS49653 Check07/26/2016

-432.76OutstandingAccounts PayableWESTGATE PETROLEUM CO., INC.49654 Check07/26/2016

-25.44OutstandingAccounts PayableYOLO COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL49655 Check07/26/2016

-11,108.78OutstandingAccounts PayableLAKEPORT DISPOSAL, INC.49659 Check07/27/2016

-819.13OutstandingAccounts PayableAFLAC49660 Check08/05/2016

-693.67OutstandingAccounts PayableCA STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT49661 Check08/05/2016

-18,334.75OutstandingAccounts PayableCALPERS49662 Check08/05/2016

-500.00OutstandingAccounts PayableELIZABETH LAMBERT49663 Check08/05/2016

-200.00OutstandingAccounts PayableFRANCHISE TAX BOARD49664 Check08/05/2016

-25.00OutstandingAccounts PayableJACQUELINE M. STOEBE49665 Check08/05/2016

-330.00OutstandingAccounts PayableLAKEPORT EMPLOYEE'S ASSOC49666 Check08/05/2016

-405.00OutstandingAccounts PayableLPOA49667 Check08/05/2016

-1,200.00OutstandingAccounts PayableNATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION49668 Check08/05/2016

-250.00OutstandingAccounts PayableREDWOOD CREDIT UNION49669 Check08/05/2016

-1,438.50OutstandingAccounts PayableVALIC - C/O JP MORGAN CHASE49670 Check08/05/2016

-75.33OutstandingAccounts Payable L. N.  CURTIS & SONS49671 Check08/05/2016

-1,516.00OutstandingAccounts PayableALPHA ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES49672 Check08/05/2016

0.00VoidedAccounts PayableVoid Check49673 Check08/05/2016

-322.39OutstandingAccounts PayableAT&T49674 Check08/05/2016

-239.46OutstandingAccounts PayableAT&T49675 Check08/05/2016

-1,150.00OutstandingAccounts PayableBRIAN  DENTON49676 Check08/05/2016

-2,978.29OutstandingAccounts PayableBROWER CONSTRUCTION49677 Check08/05/2016



Issued Date Range: 07/12/2016 - 08/05/2016     Cleared Date Range:  -Bank Transaction Report

8/5/2016 6:02:38 PM Page 4 of 6

Cleared
Date Number Description Module Status AmountType

Issued
Date

-169.94OutstandingAccounts PayableCABELA'S INC49678 Check08/05/2016

-9,375.00OutstandingAccounts PayableCOMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES49679 Check08/05/2016

-2,475.00OutstandingAccounts PayableCOUNTY OF LAKE - INFO TECH49680 Check08/05/2016

-2,136.82OutstandingAccounts PayableCOUNTY OF LAKE-PUBLIC WORKS49681 Check08/05/2016

-2,157.50OutstandingAccounts PayableCRAWFORD & ASSOCIATES, INC.49682 Check08/05/2016

-765.00OutstandingAccounts PayableDEBBIE ARRINGTON49683 Check08/05/2016

-675.00OutstandingAccounts PayableDEBRA  ENGLAND49684 Check08/05/2016

-115.15OutstandingAccounts PayableDEPT OF CONSERVATION49685 Check08/05/2016

-35.64OutstandingAccounts PayableFED EX49686 Check08/05/2016

-148.00OutstandingAccounts PayableFORREST STOGNER49687 Check08/05/2016

-30.24OutstandingAccounts PayableG & G PRINTING SERVICES49688 Check08/05/2016

-552,592.23OutstandingAccounts PayableGRANITE CONSTRUCTION COMPANY49689 Check08/05/2016

-28,330.86OutstandingAccounts PayableGRANITE CONSTRUCTION COMPANY49690 Check08/05/2016

-22.68OutstandingAccounts PayableHANSEN GROCERY INC.49691 Check08/05/2016

-19,007.72OutstandingAccounts PayableHARTFORD RETIREE PREMIUM ACCT49692 Check08/05/2016

-143.36OutstandingAccounts PayableHDS WHITE CAP CONST SUPPLY49693 Check08/05/2016

-309.00OutstandingAccounts PayableIRVINE & JACHENS, INC.49694 Check08/05/2016

-215.29OutstandingAccounts PayableKELSEYVILLE TNT MINI STORAGE49695 Check08/05/2016

-300.00OutstandingAccounts PayableKIT LARSEN49696 Check08/05/2016

-50.00OutstandingAccounts PayableLAKE CO OFFICE OF EDUCATION49697 Check08/05/2016

-30.00OutstandingAccounts PayableLAKE COUNTY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE49698 Check08/05/2016

-1,391.45OutstandingAccounts PayableLAKE COUNTY RECORD BEE49699 Check08/05/2016

-25,309.10OutstandingAccounts PayableLAKEPORT DISPOSAL, INC.49700 Check08/05/2016

-225.00OutstandingAccounts PayableLEAGUE OF CALIF CITIES- REDWOOD EMPIRE DIVISION49701 Check08/05/2016

-5,625.00OutstandingAccounts PayableLEW EDWARDS GROUP49702 Check08/05/2016

-685.00OutstandingAccounts PayableMARK  CLEMENTI, PH.D.49703 Check08/05/2016

-1,485.80OutstandingAccounts PayableMEDIACOM49704 Check08/05/2016

-110.00OutstandingAccounts PayableMENDOCINO-LAKE AUDIOLOGY, INC.49705 Check08/05/2016

-230,242.06OutstandingAccounts PayableMERCER-FRASER49706 Check08/05/2016

-236.50OutstandingAccounts PayableMYERS STEVENS & TOOHEY & CO.49707 Check08/05/2016

-865.83OutstandingAccounts PayableNFP NATIONAL ACCOUNT SERVICES49708 Check08/05/2016

-2,912.00OutstandingAccounts PayableNTU TECHNOLOGIES INC49709 Check08/05/2016

-92.98OutstandingAccounts PayableOFFICE DEPOT49710 Check08/05/2016

-4,145.93OutstandingAccounts PayablePACE SUPPLY #03391-0049711 Check08/05/2016

-750.00OutstandingAccounts PayablePAUL HARRIS49712 Check08/05/2016

-10,887.92OutstandingAccounts PayablePAUL R. CURREN49713 Check08/05/2016

-135.00OutstandingAccounts PayablePEOPLE SERVICES, INC.49714 Check08/05/2016

-654.00OutstandingAccounts PayablePERFORMANCE MECHANICAL49715 Check08/05/2016

-375.00OutstandingAccounts PayablePERKINS SEPTIC TANK CLEANING49716 Check08/05/2016

-11,213.84OutstandingAccounts PayablePG&E VO24810449717 Check08/05/2016

-561.07OutstandingAccounts PayablePITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER49718 Check08/05/2016

-448.20OutstandingAccounts PayablePOLYDYNE, INC.49719 Check08/05/2016

-56,877.00OutstandingAccounts PayableR.E.M.I.F.49720 Check08/05/2016



Issued Date Range: 07/12/2016 - 08/05/2016     Cleared Date Range:  -Bank Transaction Report

8/5/2016 6:02:38 PM Page 5 of 6

Cleared
Date Number Description Module Status AmountType

Issued
Date

-225.00OutstandingAccounts PayableRAU AND ASSOCIATES, INC.49721 Check08/05/2016

-265.00OutstandingAccounts PayableRB PEST CONTROL49722 Check08/05/2016

-32.40OutstandingAccounts PayableREANA HOAGLEN49723 Check08/05/2016

-250.00OutstandingAccounts PayableROGER WHEELER LANDSCAPING49724 Check08/05/2016

-47.38OutstandingAccounts PayableSHRED-IT USA LLC49725 Check08/05/2016

-1,190.20OutstandingAccounts PayableSIERRA CHEMICAL COMPANY49726 Check08/05/2016

-560.37OutstandingAccounts PayableSTANDARD PRINTING COMPANY49727 Check08/05/2016

-35.00OutstandingAccounts PayableSUTTER LAKESIDE HOSPITAL49728 Check08/05/2016

-1,778.29OutstandingAccounts PayableTHE WORKS INC/MLS - LSQ FUNDING GROUP49729 Check08/05/2016

-4,279.47OutstandingAccounts PayableUNIVAR USA INC.49730 Check08/05/2016

-872.36OutstandingAccounts PayableUS POSTMASTER - ARIZONA49731 Check08/05/2016

-161.20OutstandingAccounts PayableUSA BLUE BOOK49732 Check08/05/2016

-220,125.00OutstandingAccounts PayableUSDA RURAL DEVELOPMENT49733 Check08/05/2016

-14,371.56OutstandingAccounts PayableWECO INDUSTRIES49734 Check08/05/2016

-3,334.27OutstandingAccounts PayableWESTGATE PETROLEUM CO., INC.49735 Check08/05/2016

-3,663.32OutstandingAccounts PayableXYLEM WATER SOLUTIONS U.S.A., INC.49736 Check08/05/2016

-2,298.41OutstandingAccounts PayableYOLO COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL49737 Check08/05/2016

-3,213.72OutstandingAccounts PayableIRSDFT0000292 Bank Draft08/05/2016

-3,164.29OutstandingAccounts PayableCA EMP DEVELOPMENT DEPTDFT0000293 Bank Draft08/05/2016

-1,017.17OutstandingAccounts PayableCA EMP DEVELOPMENT DEPTDFT0000294 Bank Draft08/05/2016

-11,171.72OutstandingAccounts PayableIRSDFT0000295 Bank Draft08/05/2016

-602.10OutstandingAccounts PayableIRSDFT0000296 Bank Draft08/05/2016

Bank Account 15-0352000798 Total: (187) -2,325,729.00

Report Total: (187) -2,325,729.00



Issued Date Range: 07/12/2016 - 08/05/2016     Cleared Date Range:  -Bank Transaction Report

8/5/2016 6:02:38 PM Page 6 of 6

Summary
Bank Account Count Amount

-2,325,729.0018715-0352000798 POOLED CASH BANK

-2,325,729.00Report Total: 187

Cash Account Count Amount

0.001 **No Cash Account**

-2,325,729.00186998 998-0000-101000   POOLED CASH - WEST AMERICA

-2,325,729.00Report Total: 187

Transaction Type Count Amount

-46,254.8910Bank Draft

-2,339,241.27176Check

59,767.161Check Reversal

-2,325,729.00Report Total: 187











From: Lori Price
To: Hilary Britton
Subject: RE: Application 2016-020 - Annual LC Fair Parade
Date: Friday, July 22, 2016 8:06:26 AM
Attachments: image002.png

Good morning Hilary,
 
I have reviewed the subject permit application and it does not appear it will impact county roads in
 any way.  Lake County Public Works has no comments or concerns regarding this application. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this event.
 
Sincerely,
 
Lori Price
Secretary III
Lake County Department of Public Works
255 N. Forbes Street, Rm 309
Lakeport, CA 95453
(707) 263-2341
lorip@co.lake.ca.us
From: Hilary Britton [mailto:hbritton@cityoflakeport.com] 
Sent: Thursday, July 21, 2016 4:31 PM
To: Dean Eichelmann; Cheryl Bennett; Cynthia Ader; Daniel Chance; Doug Grider; Executive
 Management; Gary Basor; Jason Ferguson; Jim Kennedy; Linda Sobieraj; Lori Price; Mark Wall
 (mwaconsulting@comcast.net); Mike Sobieraj; Pheakdey Preciado; Rebekah Dolby; Ron Ladd; Tina
 Rubin
Subject: Application 2016-020 - Annual LC Fair Parade
 
Hi all,
 
Please find attached Application 2016-020 for the annual Lake County Fair Parade for your review.
 
We would like to submit this application to Council for approval at the 08/16/2016 meeting, so
 please have your comments back to me by 08/09/2016.
 
As always, thank you for your input.
 
Hilary Britton
Deputy City Clerk
City of Lakeport
225 Park Street
Lakeport, CA  95453
(707) 263-5615 x12
hbritton@cityoflakeport.com

mailto:Lori.Price@lakecountyca.gov
mailto:hbritton@cityoflakeport.com
mailto:hbritton@cityoflakeport.com



From: jferguson@lakeportpolice.org
To: Hilary Britton
Subject: Re: Application 2016-020 - Annual LC Fair Parade
Date: Monday, July 25, 2016 8:32:20 AM
Attachments: image002.png

Hillary,

2- Volunteers for traffic control at $68.00 per Volunteer for 1 hour=$136.00

1- Patrol Officer to lead the parade at $68.00 per Officer for 1 hours=$68.00

LT.

 
A true hero is not defined simply by the uniform he or she is wearing but rather the person
 who's wearing it!
 

-----Original Message-----
From: Hilary Britton [mailto:hbritton@cityoflakeport.com]
Sent: Thursday, July 21, 2016 04:31 PM
To: Amanda Frazell (Dean.Eichelmann@lakecountyca.gov), 
Cheryl Bennett (cheryl.bennett@lakecountyca.gov), 'Cynthia Ader', 'Daniel Chance', 
'Doug Grider', 'Executive Management', 'Gary Basor', 'Jason Ferguson', 'Jim Kennedy', 
'Linda Sobieraj', Lori Price (lorip@co.lake.ca.us), 
Mark Wall (mwaconsulting@comcast.net), 'Mike Sobieraj', 
Pheakdey Preciado (pheakdey.preciado@lakecountyca.gov), 'Rebekah Dolby', 'Ron Ladd', 
Tina Rubin (Tina.Rubin@lakecountyca.gov)
Subject: Application 2016-020 - Annual LC Fair Parade

Hi all,
 
Please find attached Application 2016-020 for the annual Lake County Fair Parade for your
 review.
 
We would like to submit this application to Council for approval at the 08/16/2016 meeting, so
 please have your comments back to me by 08/09/2016.
 
As always, thank you for your input.
 
Hilary Britton
Deputy City Clerk
City of Lakeport
225 Park Street
Lakeport, CA  95453
(707) 263-5615 x12
hbritton@cityoflakeport.com

mailto:jferguson@lakeportpolice.org
mailto:hbritton@cityoflakeport.com
mailto:hbritton@cityoflakeport.com













From: Melissa Fulton
To: Hilary Britton
Subject: Splash In Permit
Date: Tuesday, August 02, 2016 11:13:06 AM
Attachments: Lakeport Permit Ap & Map.pdf

Hilary, I will be dropping off checks for the Oktoberfest & Splash In
 applications later today.  I left a voice mail a bit ago for Margaret about
 the fact that the only city property we are using for this event is a

 portion of the Library Park parking lot by the 5th Street launch ramp. 
 Also, that there will be no plane activity on city property since we
 cancelled the REACH helicopter display in favor of having a classic car
 show & shine in that area.
 
With no planes on city property, I’m hoping to avoid that 10 million
 dollar insurance requirement.
 
Thank you,
 
Building Business & Community,

 
Melissa Fulton, CEO, CTA
Lake County California Chamber of Commerce

 

 
Lake County California Chamber of Commerce & Visitors Center
875 Lakeport Blvd ~ At George C. Hoberg Vista Point
Lakeport CA 95453
(707) 263-5092         (866) 525-3767
(707) 263-5104
www.lakecochamber.com
 
Monday - Friday 9:00am to 5:00 pm PST

 
 

mailto:ceo@lakecochamber.com
mailto:hbritton@cityoflakeport.com















From: Lori Price
To: Hilary Britton
Subject: RE: Application 2016-021 - Splash-In
Date: Wednesday, August 03, 2016 1:54:40 PM
Attachments: image002.png

Good afternoon,  I have reviewed the above subject application and it does not appear it will impact
 county roads in any way.  I am forwarding the application on to Water Resources in the event that
 they have conditions or comments to add to this application.
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment.
 
Sincerely,
 
Lori Price
Secretary III
Lake County Department of Public Works
255 N. Forbes Street, Rm 309
Lakeport, CA 95453
(707) 263-2341
lorip@co.lake.ca.us
From: Hilary Britton [mailto:hbritton@cityoflakeport.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, August 03, 2016 1:47 PM
To: Dean Eichelmann; Cheryl Bennett; Cynthia Ader; Daniel Chance; Doug Grider; Executive
 Management; Gary Basor; Jason Ferguson; Jim Kennedy; Linda Sobieraj; Lori Price; Mark Wall
 (mwaconsulting@comcast.net); Matt Hartzog; Mike Sobieraj; Pheakdey Preciado; Rebekah Dolby; Ron
 Ladd; Tina Rubin
Subject: Application 2016-021 - Splash-In
 
Hi All,
 
Please find attached Application 2016-021 for the Splash-In event to be held September 16 & 17,
 2016 for your review and comments. 
 
We would like to submit this for Council approval at the 08/16/2016 meeting, so please have your
 comments back to me by 08/10/2016.
 
Thank you for your input.
 
Hilary Britton
Deputy City Clerk
City of Lakeport
225 Park Street
Lakeport, CA  95453
(707) 263-5615 x12
hbritton@cityoflakeport.com

mailto:Lori.Price@lakecountyca.gov
mailto:hbritton@cityoflakeport.com
mailto:hbritton@cityoflakeport.com



From: jferguson@lakeportpolice.org
To: Hilary Britton
Subject: Re: Application 2016-021 - Splash-In
Date: Wednesday, August 03, 2016 3:11:17 PM
Attachments: image002.png

No police concerns
 
A true hero is not defined simply by the uniform he or she is wearing but rather the person
 who's wearing it!
 

-----Original Message-----
From: Hilary Britton [mailto:hbritton@cityoflakeport.com]
Sent: Wednesday, August 3, 2016 01:46 PM
To: Amanda Frazell (Dean.Eichelmann@lakecountyca.gov), 
Cheryl Bennett (cheryl.bennett@lakecountyca.gov), 'Cynthia Ader', 'Daniel Chance', 
'Doug Grider', 'Executive Management', 'Gary Basor', 'Jason Ferguson', 'Jim Kennedy', 
'Linda Sobieraj', Lori Price (lorip@co.lake.ca.us), 
Mark Wall (mwaconsulting@comcast.net), 'Matt Hartzog', 'Mike Sobieraj', 
Pheakdey Preciado (pheakdey.preciado@lakecountyca.gov), 'Rebekah Dolby', 'Ron Ladd', 
Tina Rubin (Tina.Rubin@lakecountyca.gov)
Subject: Application 2016-021 - Splash-In

Hi All,
 
Please find attached Application 2016-021 for the Splash-In event to be held September 16 & 17,
 2016 for your review and comments. 
 
We would like to submit this for Council approval at the 08/16/2016 meeting, so please have your
 comments back to me by 08/10/2016.
 
Thank you for your input.
 
Hilary Britton
Deputy City Clerk
City of Lakeport
225 Park Street
Lakeport, CA  95453
(707) 263-5615 x12
hbritton@cityoflakeport.com

         
 

This email checked with McAfee SaaS.

mailto:jferguson@lakeportpolice.org
mailto:hbritton@cityoflakeport.com
mailto:hbritton@cityoflakeport.com
http://cp.mcafee.com/d/k-Kr4x0g6jqb0WWryqoVYTsSztdVBdUQsK3zqdQTCkPhPt54SztdVBdUQsKf6QrFLfzANPa9ICgzasWM1lFjbltfQHWRoPVsTqkORnjZa-Jmc-ndFTIUDEV_HYCztMtRXBQSjhODP2qqpEVWyaqRQRrLesG7DR8OJMddECQPt-jKUMe73CkTztPpesRG9pxjDtJV2JiLbUJF7Wo9iCmbRtbxniLHlzf4krK8CzBBVUQsLcEzDzoyXYibtaM1h-BvmH6qRjVm_w09JAQsCzAQsK6MnWhEw45BzVmSsGMd42tQn2ZQQjh0nd40MIvJ2psdwrpsdHdyioClahs-d
http://cp.mcafee.com/d/k-Kr6gUq6zqb0WWryqoVYTsSztdVBdUQsK3zqdQTCkPhPt54SztdVBdUQsKf6QrFLfzANPa9ICgzasWM1lFjbltfQHWRoPVsTqkORnjZa-Jmc-ndFTIUDEV_HYCztMtRXBQSjhODP2qqpEVWyaqRQRrLesG7DR8OJMddFCQPt-jKUMe73CkTztPo0eQFBGKDWlZqIpYLxIht-95KBo0E_iLHlzdqFYHvM04SOqejhOqen3obZ8Qg22ONYHrelo6y1eWbxuWq9EwbCy0omfSxcK6MdIK6ZX7ghXH2













From: jferguson@lakeportpolice.org
To: Hilary Britton
Subject: Re: Application 2016-022 - Catfish Derby (Yacht Club)
Date: Tuesday, August 09, 2016 4:54:48 PM
Attachments: image002.png

No police concerns 

A true hero is not defined simply by the uniform he or she is wearing but rather the person
 who's wearing it!
 

-----Original Message-----
From: Hilary Britton [mailto:hbritton@cityoflakeport.com]
Sent: Tuesday, August 9, 2016 04:51 PM
To: 'Cynthia Ader', 'Daniel Chance', 'Doug Grider', 'Executive Management', 'Gary Basor', 
'Jason Ferguson', 'Jim Kennedy', 'Linda Sobieraj', 'Matt Hartzog', 'Mike Sobieraj', 
'Rebekah Dolby', 'Ron Ladd'
Subject: Application 2016-022 - Catfish Derby (Yacht Club)

Hi all,
 

Please find attached Application 2016-022 for a Catfish Derby to be held at the 5th street boat
 launch, and utilizing 4 parking spots for overnight RV camping August 26 & 27, 2016, for your
 review.
 
We would like to submit this for Council approval at the 08/16/2016 meeting, so please have your
 comments back to me by this Thursday, August 11, 2016.
 
Sorry for the rush ? the application just came in today.
 
Thank you for your input.
 
Hilary Britton
Deputy City Clerk
City of Lakeport
225 Park Street
Lakeport, CA  95453
(707) 263-5615 x12
hbritton@cityoflakeport.com

         
 

This email checked with McAfee SaaS.

mailto:jferguson@lakeportpolice.org
mailto:hbritton@cityoflakeport.com
mailto:hbritton@cityoflakeport.com
http://cp.mcafee.com/d/FZsSd1NJ5wtssYUYYUrKrhKCYOCYqen1NJ6WrPapEVKyyrhKCYOCYqen7zqdQTDNOoVB4Sj8hBeto0GQFBGKDWlZqIpYKrJapqHF-BvmH6vbCTS47dQs_R-hd7bWtQPhPRXBQSjhOzP8VZOVEVhVqWdAklrzCul3PWApmU6CQjqpK_9Tso73xParNKVIDeqR4IMFPKSYxmFnBYmQzZc4Fjb5WKBMHFnRGNDyadT4jhOOYYqenCkhPNIht-95KBo0E_iLHlzdqFYHvM04SOqenxOpI5-Aq811po-lJDaI3h0Dt5MLtdcQg5Ph09rdSl2pEw3Lygb6y0Qk0vr4VCy0ifr86yAS-OrW1Wb
http://cp.mcafee.com/d/FZsSd3gwrho7n7feffe6XCQrFLcFL6zBMsrhKCYOCqerEECQrFLcFL6zBNUSztdVYsCephdAO4pjDm0aJapqHF-BvmH6vbCXiCmGWvFnRGNDOVJZx1Pt7fZvAjhO-DtcQsZuVtdAQsEYOevsKqekumKzp55mUVDBgY-F6lK1FJcSCrLOtT61MUsOCYrKr01SBcJlQ_iLHlzfBYdybLN8JQH057WlZqIpHlfBr-00CSjhOYejdwLQzh08bb7OJIVlwq84XEK5XFFCy0Kq81bpKOEjd40tYi1oQg6yw3XoDcQg2hXp0QkCTSjpfAHOVesTlKL



RESOLUTION NO. _____ (2016) 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKEPORT  
APPROVING THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE  

CITY OF LAKEPORT AND THE LAKEPORT EMPLOYEES’ ASSOCIATION 
FOR THE PERIOD AUGUST 16, 2016 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2017,  

AND AUTHORIZING ITS EXECUTION 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Lakeport has bargained with the Lakeport Employees’ Association 
on matters of employment including wages, hours and the terms and conditions of 
employment for those employees; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the terms and conditions contained herein have been negotiated by the City 
of Lakeport and the Lakeport Employees’ Association and such terms and conditions have been 
agreed upon by both parties; and  
 
 WHEREAS, this Memorandum of Understanding includes all terms and conditions of 
employment with respect to wages, hours, and working conditions applicable to the City of 
Lakeport Employees’ Association beginning August 16, 2016 through June 30, 2017; 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lakeport hereby 
approves the attached Memorandum of Understanding for the City of Lakeport Employees’ 
Association for the period August 16, 2016 through June 30, 2017, and authorizes the City 
Manager to execute this Memorandum of Understanding on behalf of the City.  
 
 The foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 
Council on the 16th day of August, 2016, by the following vote: 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSTAINING:  
ABSENT:  
 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       MARC SPILLMAN, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
KELLY BUENDIA, City Clerk 



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



Meeting Date:  08/16/2016 Page 1 Agenda Item #IV.H. 
166603.1 

CITY OF LAKEPORT 
City Council  

City of Lakeport Municipal Sewer District  
Lakeport Redevelopment Successor Agency  

Lakeport Industrial Development Agency   
Municipal Financing Agency of Lakeport   

STAFF REPORT 

RE:   Gann (Appropriations) Limit Review and Resolution Establishing the 
Fiscal Year 2016-17 Appropriations Limit 

MEETING DATE:   8/16/2016 

SUBMITTED BY:   Ginny Feth-Michel, Interim Finance Director 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:        Information only       Discussion      Action Item 

 

WHAT IS BEING ASKED OF THE CITY COUNCIL/BOARD: 

The City Council is asked to review and approve the annual appropriations limit for the City of Lakeport and adopt 
the associated resolution. 

BACKGROUND 

The Gann Spending Limitation Initiative (Article XIII B of the California Constitution) adopted as Proposition 4 in 
June 1979 (and subsequently modified by Proposition 111 in June 1990) requires the City to annually adopt a 
resolution setting an “appropriation limit” for the upcoming fiscal year. The Gann Spending Limitation was 
intended to provide citizen control of government spending and taxation.  The City’s Fiscal Year 2016-17 Budget 
was approved by the City Council on June 21, 2016 (Resolution No. 2583).  

ANALYSIS 

California Government Code, Section 7910 (a) "each  year the governing body of each local jurisdiction shall, by 
resolution, establish its appropriations limit and make other  necessary determinations for the following fiscal 
year pursuant to Article XIII B of the California Constitution at a regularly scheduled meeting or noticed special 
meeting ...." 

California Constitution, Article XIIIB. Sec. 1  "The total annual appropriations subject to limitation of the State and 
of each local government shall not exceed the appropriations limit of the entity of government for the prior year 
adjusted for the change in the cost of living and the change in population , except as otherwise provided  in this 
article. 

The Gann Spending Limitation calculation is attached. This calculation used population and per capita personal 
income statistics provided by the California Department of Finance.  The establishment of the Fiscal Year 2016-17 
Appropriations Limit ("Gann Limit") is necessary to comply with Article XIIIB of the State Constitution. The Gann 
Limit limits the amount of revenue classified as proceeds of taxes that can be appropriated in any fiscal year by a 
government entity. Certain exclusions are allowed including transfers, capital outlay and payments for debt 
service. The maximum allowable appropriation of revenues subject to limitations for Fiscal Year 2016-17 is 
$11,109,633, and the FY 2016-2017 Budget with the exclusions, referenced above, is within this limit. This 
maximum amount increases or decreases each year depending on the percentage change in the per capita 



Meeting Date:  08/16/2016 Page 2 Agenda Item #IV.H. 
166603.1 

personal income (5.37%) and the percentage change in population (.06%). The California Department of Finance 
has estimated the total population for the City of Lakeport as of January 1, 2016 as 4,765.  For Fiscal Year 2016-17 
the budgeted revenues subject to limitation total $3,475,450, which is $7,634,183 less than the maximum allowed. 

 

OPTIONS: 

Approve the appropriations limit of $11,109,633 in Fiscal Year 2016-17 for the City of Lakeport and authorize the 
Mayor to sign the associated resolution. 
Do not approve the resolution and provide direction to staff. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 None   $ Budgeted Item?   Yes    No 

Budget Adjustment Needed?   Yes    No   If yes, amount of appropriation increase:  $2,000 

Affected fund(s):  General Fund    Water OM Fund    Sewer OM Fund    Other:       

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

1. Approve the appropriations limit of $11,109,063 for Fiscal Year 2016-17 for the City of Lakeport and adopt 
the proposed resolution. 
 

    Attachments:    1. Proposed Resolution 
2. Gann Limit Calculation 

 



Resolution No. 2544 (2015)  Page 1 

RESOLUTION NO. xxxx (2016) 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKEPORT 
ESTABLISHING THE FISCAL YEAR 2016-17 APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 

FOR THE CITY OF LAKEPORT 
 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to California Government Code Section 7910, the City Council must, 
by resolution, establish its appropriations limit for each fiscal year. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the appropriations limit for the City of 
Lakeport for the 2016-17 Fiscal Year shall be Eleven Million, One Hundred and Nine Thousand, 
Six Hundred and Thirty-three Dollars ($11,109,633). 
 

This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Lakeport at a regular 
meeting thereof on the 16th day of August, 2016, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSTAINING:  
ABSENT:  
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       MARC SPILLMAN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
KELLY BUENDIA, City Clerk 

ATTACHMENT 1



Gann Limit Calculation

FY 2016-17

Per Capita Cost of Living Change = 5.37 percent
Population Change (City) = 0.06 percent

Per Capita Cost of Living converted to a ratio: 5.37 + 100 = 1.0537
100

Population converted to a ratio: 0.06 + 100 = 1.0006
100

Calculation of factor for FY 2016-17: 1.0537 x 1.0006 = 1.0543

Appropriations Limit, Fiscal Year 2015-16 10,537,127$    

Appropriations Limit, Fiscal Year 2016-17 11,109,633$    
($10,537,127 x 1.0319)

FY 2016-17 appropriations subject to Gann Limit

Adopted 
Budget

 $         845,290 
         2,054,434 
            124,726 
            150,000 
            206,000 
              95,000 
 $      3,475,450 

31.28%

State Subventions

Percentage Use of Appropriations Limit

FISCAL YEAR 2065-17

Franchise Taxes
Business License Taxes

Property Taxes
Sales Taxes
Special Taxes

City of Lakeport
Finance Department K:\Finance\Budget\2016-17\Gann Limit Calc 2016

ATTACHMENT 2



Meeting Date:  08/16/2016 Page 1 Agenda Item #IV.I. 

CITY OF LAKEPORT 
City Council  

City of Lakeport Municipal Sewer District  
               Lakeport Redevelopment Successor Agency   

Lakeport Industrial Development Agency   
Municipal Financing Agency of Lakeport   

  STAFF REPORT 

RE:   Lease for County Fair Parking at 902 Bevins Ct.  MEETING DATE:   08/16/2016 

SUBMITTED BY:   Margaret Silveira, City Manager 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:        Information only       Discussion      Action Item 

 

WHAT IS BEING ASKED OF THE CITY COUNCIL/BOARD: 

The City Council is being asked to approve a lease agreement with 49TH District Agricultural Association, 
to allow for parking at 902 Bevins Court from September 1-5, 2016 during the Annual Lake County Fair. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:   

The City has had an agreement with the 49th District Agricultural Association, (Lake County Fair Board) to 
utilize the empty lot at 902 Bevins Court, owned by the Lakeport Redevelopment Successor Agency, for 
overflow parking during the Lake County Fair.  The use of the Bevins lot for Fair parking has been going on 
for many years. The lease agreement has been updated and staff is recommending the approval of the lease. 

OPTIONS: 

Approve  

Disapprove  

No action 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

  None at this time.      Account Number:   Comments:        

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

Move to approve the lease for fair parking at 902 Bevins Court with the 49th District Agricultural 
Association and authorize the City Manager to execute the lease. 
 

  Attachments: 1. Lease Agreement 

 



1 
167396.2 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

DATE: ___________, 2016 

THIS AGREEMENT by and between the SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE LAKEPORT 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, hereinafter called the Owner, and 49TH DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL 
ASSOCIATION, hereinafter called the Lessee. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS The Lessee desires to secure from the Owner certain rights and privileges and 
to obtain permission from the Owner to use the Owner's premises, located on 902 Bevins Court 
in Lakeport (APN 025-462-11) (the “Property”), beginning on September 1, 2016 and ending on 
September 5, 2016. 

NOW, THEREFORE, Owner hereby grants to the Lessee the right to occupy the Property 
for the public parking purposes associated with the Lake County Fair, subject to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. The purpose of occupancy shall be limited to temporary public 
parking for visitors to the Lake County Fair, and shall be for no other purpose or purposes 
whatsoever. 

1. Lessee agrees to compensate Owner for the rights and privileges hereby granted, in the 
manner set forth below: Lessee shall: 

A. Lessee shall pay Owner $1.00 as consideration for the use of the Property. 

B. Remove any brush within the parking area of the Property. 

C. Perform minor leveling of the Property to make the lot safe for parking and 
walking. 

D. Maintain a gravel walkway from the Property onto fairgrounds property.  

E. Keep the Property clean of trash and clean it of any accumulated trash after the 
Fair. 

F. Provide a liability insurance certificate naming the Owner as an additional 
insured, in accordance with Section 11 below. 

G. Provide for site access to the Property over the Bevins Court curb. 

H. Provide temporary site lighting on the Property. 

I. Repair any damage caused to the Property as result of activities occurring under 
this Lease within 30 days of September 5, 2016. 

ATTACHMENT 1



2 
167396.2 

2. Lessee further agrees that it will not sell, exchange or barter, or permit its employees to 
sell, exchange or barter, any permits issued to Lessee or its employees hereunder 

3. It is mutually agreed that this contract or the privileges granted herein, or any part 
thereof, cannot be assigned or otherwise disposed of without the written consent of 
Owner. 

4. In the event Lessee fails to comply in any respect with the terms of this agreement, all 
payments for this rental space shall be deemed earned and non-refundable by Owner and 
Owner shall have the right to occupy the space in any manner deemed for the best 
interests of Owner. 

5. This agreement is not binding upon either party until it has been duly accepted and signed 
by their authorized representatives. 

6. Lessee shall not do or permit anything to be done in or about the Property nor bring or 
keep anything therein that will in any way increase the existing rate of or affect any fire or 
other insurance upon the Property. Lessee shall not commit or allow to be committed any 
waste in or upon the Property.  

7. Lessee shall not without, Owner’s prior written approval, install or affix any lighting, 
shades, awnings, or decorations, signs, lettering, placards, or the like on any portion of 
the Property; display or sell merchandise on, or otherwise obstruct, any area outside the 
Property; cause or permit to be used any advertising, loudspeakers, unusually bright or 
flashing lights, and similar devices which may be seen or heard outside the Property 
unless approved by a separate Conditional Use Permit or Special Event Permit with prior 
approval by Lessee, 

8. Owner and Owner's officers, employees, and agents shall at all reasonable times have the 
right to enter the Property for the purpose of inspecting the same, posting notices of non-
responsibility or any other notices required by law for the protection of Owner, doing any 
work that Owner is permitted or required to perform under this Agreement, and making 
any reasonable repairs which Owner determines may be required. 

9. Lessee is, and at all times shall remain, an independent contractor solely responsible for 
all acts and omissions of its employees, agents and representatives, including any 
negligent acts or omissions. Lessee is not an agent of Owner and shall have no authority 
to act on behalf of Owner or to bind Owner to any obligation whatsoever unless Owner 
provides its prior written authorization to Lessee of such an obligation. Lessee is not an 
officer or employee of Owner, and Lessee shall not be entitled to any benefit, right, or 
compensation other than that as provided for in this Agreement. 

10. Lessee shall comply with all applicable legal requirements including all federal, state, and 
local laws (including ordinances and resolutions), whether or not said laws are expressly 
stated in this Agreement.  

ATTACHMENT 1



3 
167396.2 

11. Lessee shall, throughout the duration of this Agreement, secure and maintain insurance to 
cover Lessee (including its agents, representatives, and employees) in connection with 
Lessee’s performance under this Agreement. This Agreement identifies the required 
minimum levels of insurance coverage that Lessee shall obtain; however, Lessee may 
carry, at its own expense, any additional insurance it deems to be necessary or prudent. 
Prior to the commencement of any performance under this Agreement, Lessee shall 
furnish to Owner written proof of insurance (certificates and endorsements), in a form 
acceptable to Owner. Lessee shall provide subsequent written proof of insurance no later 
than 30 days prior to the expiration date of any insurance policy required by this 
Agreement. Lessee shall maintain insurance that complies with the following 
requirements: 

A. Workers' Compensation Insurance with statutory limits and employer's liability 
insurance with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per 
accident. 

B. Lessee shall take out and maintain, at Lessee’s sole expense, Public Liability 
Insurance with coverage in the amount of $ 1,000,000.00 for one person and 
$1,000,000.00 for one accident with bodily injury and $ 1,000,000.00 for 
property damage. 

C. Lessee’s insurance will not be canceled, limited, or allowed to expire without 
renewal until after 30 days advance written notice of any such cancellation, 
limitation or expiration has been given to Owner.  

D. All insurance companies providing coverage to Lessee shall be insurance 
organizations authorized by the Insurance Commissioner of the State of 
California to transact the business of insurance in the State of California and 
rated at least B+ under Best’s Insurance Guide. 

E.  All of the insurance policies required to be obtained by Lessee under this Section 
shall be with companies and policies whose form is satisfactory and acceptable 
to Owner. Each policy shall designate Owner as an additional named insured. 
Lessee shall provide Owner with certificates of insurance (hereinafter 
“Certificates”) issued by each of the insurance companies issuing any of the 
policies required pursuant to this Section. In the event Lessee fails to take out or 
maintain any of the insurance required pursuant to this Section, Owner shall 
have the right to obtain said policies in form and with companies acceptable to 
Owner, and to pay any premiums due thereon. The total amount of any 
insurance premiums paid by Owner on Lessee’s behalf shall be paid by Lessee to 
Owner upon demand, and said amounts shall start to bear interest at the rate of 
ten percent (10%) per annum as of the date of Owner’s demand for payment by 
Lessee. 

ATTACHMENT 1



4 
167396.2 

12. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Lessee shall indemnify, hold harmless, and when 
Owner requests with respect to a claim provide a deposit for the defense of, and defend 
Owner, its officers, agents, employees and volunteers from and against any and all claims 
and losses, costs or expenses for any damage due to death or injury to any person, 
whether physical, emotional, consequential or otherwise, and injury to any property 
arising out of or in connection with Lessee’s alleged negligence, recklessness or willful 
misconduct or other wrongful acts, errors or omissions of Lessee or any of its officers, 
employees, servants, agents, or subcontractors, or anyone directly or indirectly employed 
by either Lessee or its subcontractors, in the use of the property, the performance of this 
Agreement, or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in this 
Agreement, except such loss or damage as is caused by the sole active negligence or 
willful misconduct of Owner. Such costs and expenses shall include reasonable attorneys’ 
fees due to counsel of Owner’s choice, expert fees and all other costs and fees of 
litigation. Lessee shall not be entitled to any refund of attorneys’ fees, defense costs or 
expenses in the event that it is adjudicated to have been non-negligent. 

13. Should interpretation of this Agreement or any portion thereof be necessary, it is deemed 
that this Agreement was prepared by the parties jointly and equally, and shall not be 
interpreted against either party on the ground that the party prepared the Agreement or 
caused it to be prepared. 

14. Owner and Lessee agree to mediate any dispute or claim arising between them out of this 
Agreement, or any resulting transaction, before resorting to arbitration or court action in 
relation to any such dispute or claim. Mediation fees, if any shall be divided evenly among 
the parties involved. If, for any dispute or claim to which this paragraph applies, any party 
commences a court action without first attempting to resolve the matter through 
mediation, or refuses to mediate after a request has been made, than that party shall not 
be entitled to recover attorneys’ fees in relation to the dispute or claim even if they would 
be available to that party in any such action.  

15. The prevailing party in any action under this Agreement shall be entitled to recover its 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and litigation costs from the other party. 

16. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement of the parties hereto. This Agreement 
shall not be amended in any way except by a writing expressly purporting to be such an 
amendment, signed, and acknowledged by both of the parties thereto. 

17. If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid 
or unenforceable the remainder of this Agreement shall be interpreted so as to best affect 
the reasonable intent of the parties hereto. 

18. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California 
and the parties hereto agree that venue of any action or proceeding arising under this 
Agreement or the performance thereof shall be heard in Lake County, California.  

ATTACHMENT 1



5 
167396.2 

This agreement has been executed in duplicate, by and on behalf of the parties hereto, the day 
and year first above written. 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE LAKEPORT 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 
 

By:        
 Margaret Silveira, City Manager 
 
Date:    

 

49TH DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION 

 
 

By:_______________________________ 
 Name, Level of Officer 
 
Date: _______________ 
 

Attest: 
 
 
By:        
 Kelly Buendia, City Clerk 
 
Date:    

 

Attest: 
 
 
By:        
 Name, Title  
 
Date:    

 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
By:        
 David J. Ruderman, City Attorney 
 
Date:   

 

Approved as to form: 
 
 
By:        
 Name, Title 
 
Date:   

 
 

ATTACHMENT 1



Meeting Date:  08/16/2016 Page 1 Agenda Item #IV.J. 

CITY OF LAKEPORT 
City Council  

City of Lakeport Municipal Sewer District  
Lakeport Redevelopment Successor Agency  

Lakeport Industrial Development Agency   
Municipal Financing Agency of Lakeport   

STAFF REPORT 

RE:   Designated Disabled Parking  MEETING DATE:   08/16/2016 

SUBMITTED BY:   Lt. Ferguson 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:        Information only       Discussion      Action Item 

WHAT IS BEING ASKED OF THE CITY COUNCIL/BOARD: 

The City Council is being asked to consider approval to designate eight (8) disabled parking spaces in the 
entire 200 block of C Street, between South Forbes Street and the C Street entrance to the fairgrounds.   

This request would cover the time period from 4:00 p.m. Thursday, September 1st, through Sunday, 
September 4th, at midnight.  

BACKGROUND:  

 The annual Lake County Fair is host to hundreds of visitors and motorists wishing to participate in the 
event.  In years past, traffic congestion and parking, particularly parking for disabled persons, has been an 
issue on the fairgrounds property, as they have limited designated disabled parking spaces available.  
Currently, the main entrance to the fairgrounds has approximately eight (8) designated disabled parking 
spaces, which are not sufficient to accommodate the number of attendees who are qualified for such spaces.  
As a result, disabled motorists are often forced to double park or park in spaces where parking is prohibited, 
thus causing unnecessary traffic congestion and safety concerns.   

DISCUSSION: 

The approval of eight (8) temporary additional designated disabled parking spaces would allow those 
persons with disabilities to have sufficient available parking, and reduce the potential for traffic congestion 
and safety concerns at the main entrance.  Police staff has discussed this request with Public Works staff 
who stated they had sufficient signage to set up the temporary zone. 

OPTIONS: 

Approve/not approve 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

  None   $        Account Number:        Comments:        

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

Move to approve the designated temporary disabled parking in the 200 block of C Street, between South 
Forbes Street and the C street gate to the Fairgrounds, from 4:00 p.m. on Thursday, September 1st to 
Midnight on Sunday, September 4th, 2016. 

    Attachments:       
 



Meeting Date:  08/16/2016 Page 1 Agenda Item #IV.K. 

CITY OF LAKEPORT 
City Council  

City of Lakeport Municipal Sewer District  
Lakeport Redevelopment Successor Agency  

Lakeport Industrial Development Agency   
Municipal Financing Agency of Lakeport   

STAFF REPORT 

RE:   Review of Conflict of Interest Code MEETING DATE:   08/16/2016 

SUBMITTED BY:   Kelly Buendia, City Clerk 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:        Information only       Discussion      Action Item 

WHAT IS BEING ASKED OF THE CITY COUNCIL/BOARD: 

The City Council is being asked to receive and file the 2016 Local Agency Biennial Notice.   

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:   

The Political Reform Act requires every local government agency to review its Conflict of Interest Code 
biennially.   The Conflict of Interest Code tells public officials, governmental employees, and consultants what 
financial interests they must disclose on their Statement of Economic Interests (Form 700).  It is the basis for the 
transparency that California's Political Reform Act requires of public officials.   

Conflict of interest codes should be changed if there are substantial changes to the city's organizational 
structure or if there have been positions that have been eliminated or added.  The City of Lakeport's Conflict of 
Interest Code was last revised in December of 2015, and changes were made at that time.  There have been no 
changes since that time that would require an amendment to the code.   

The Political Reform Act requires that the attached 2016 Local Agency Biennial Notice must be filed with the City 
Council no later than October 1, 2016.  No action is necessary unless Council wishes to make changes to its 
Conflict of Interest Code. 

OPTIONS: 

Receive and file 2016 Local Agency Biennial Notice or provide further direction to staff. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 None  $      Budgeted Item?   Yes    No 

Budget Adjustment Needed?   Yes    No   If yes, amount of appropriation increase:  $      

Affected fund(s):  General Fund    Water OM Fund    Sewer OM Fund    Other:       

Comments:        

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

Move to receive and file the 2016 Local Agency Biennial Notice regarding the City of Lakeport's Conflict of 
Interest Code. 

    Attachments: 1. 2016 Local Agency Biennial Notice 
2. Conflict of Interest Code 

 



ATTACHMENT 1



1 Conflict of Interest Code revised 12/15/2015 
158063.1 

 
Conflict of Interest Code 
City of Lakeport, City of Lakeport Municipal Sewer District,  
City of Lakeport Redevelopment Successor Agency, Lakeport 
Industrial Development Authority, and Municipal Financing 
Agency of Lakeport 

Purpose 
 The Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000, et seq.) requires state and local 
agencies to adopt and promulgate conflict of interest codes.   

Incorporation of Section 18730 of the California Code of Regulations 
 The Fair Political Practices Commission has adopted a regulation (2 Cal. Code of Regs., 
Section 18730) that contains the terms of a standard conflict of interest code and may be incorporated 
by reference in an agency’s code.  After public notice and hearing, the standard code may be amended 
by the Fair Political Practices Commission to conform to amendments in the Political Reform Act.  
Therefore, the terms of 2 California Code of Regulations Section 18730 and any amendments to it duly 
adopted by the Fair Political Practices Commission are hereby incorporated by reference.  This 
regulation and the attached appendices designating positions and establishing disclosure requirements 
shall constitute the conflict of interest code of the City of Lakeport.   

Filing 
 Individuals holding designated positions shall file their statements with the City Clerk, who shall 
be the filing officer for the City of Lakeport, the City of Lakeport Municipal Sewer District, the City of 
Lakeport Redevelopment Successor Agency, the Lakeport Industrial Development Authority, and the 
Municipal Financing Agency of Lakeport and who shall retain the statements and make the statements 
available for public inspection and reproduction pursuant to Government Code Section 81008.   

Government Code Section 87200 Filers 
 The following positions are not covered by this code because they must file under Government 
Code Section 87200 and, therefore, are listed for informational purposes only: 
 

City Council Members 
Planning Commissioners 

City Manager 
City Attorney 
City Treasurer 

Officials who manage public investments 
 

 Individuals holding the above-listed positions may contact the Fair Political Practices 
Commission for assistance or written advice regarding their filing obligations if they believe that their 

ATTACHMENT 2



2 Conflict of Interest Code revised 12/15/2015 
158063.1 

position has been categorized incorrectly.  The Fair Political Practices Commission makes the final 
determination whether a position is covered by Government Code Section 87200. 

ATTACHMENT 2



158063.1 

Exhibit A 
Designated Employees 

 A “designated employee” is an officer, employee, member or consultant of an agency whose 
position is designated in the code because the position entails the making or participation in the making 
of governmental decisions which may foreseeably have a material effect on any financial interest.   
 
 Making a governmental decision means the person (1) votes on a matter; (2) appoints a person; 
(3) obligates or commits his or her agency to any course of action; or (4) enters into any contractual 
agreement on behalf of his or her agency. 
 
 Participating in making of a decision means the person (1) negotiates, without significant 
substantive review, with a governmental entity or private person regarding the decision; or (2) advises 
or makes recommendations to the decision-maker by conducting research or an investigation, preparing 
or presenting a report, analysis or opinion which requires the exercise of judgment on the part of the 
employee and the employee is attempting to influence the decision. 
 

Designated Employee Disclosure Categories 
Administrative Services Director/City Clerk 1 
Building Official 1 
City Engineer 1 
Community Development Director 1 
Finance Director 1 
 Associate Planner 1 
Police Chief 1 
Public Works Director 1 
  
City of Lakeport Municipal Sewer District (CLMSD) Board Members 1 
Lakeport Industrial Development Authority Board Members 1 
Municipal Financing Agency of Lakeport Board Members 1 
Redevelopment Successor Agency Board Members 1 
  
Consultants who making (not just recommend) governmental decisions, such as whether to 
approve a rate, rule, or regulation, whether to issue, deny, suspend, or revoke any permit, 
license, application, certificate or similar authorization, adopt or grant City approval to plan, 
design, report, study, or adopt or grant City approval of policies, standards, or guidelines for 
the City or any subdivision thereof.1 

1 

Consultants who act in a staff capacity with the City and in that capacity perform the same or 
substantially the same or substantially all the same duties for the City that would otherwise be 
performed by an individual holding a designated position in the City’s Conflict of Interest Code 

Same level as the comparable 
designated position identified 
elsewhere in the Code 

 

                                                           
1 Consultants are included in the list of designated positions and shall disclose pursuant to the broadest disclosure category in the code, subject 
to the following limitation: 
 
The City Manager may determine in writing that a particular consultant, although a “designated position,” is hired to perform a range of duties 
that is limited in scope and thus is not required to fully comply with the disclosure requirements in this section.  Such written determination 
shall include a description of the consultant’s duties and, based upon that description, a statement of the extent of disclosure requirements.  
The City Manager’s determination is a public record and shall be retained for public inspection in the same manner and location as this conflict 
of interest code (Government Code Section 81008).   
 

ATTACHMENT 2



4 Conflict of Interest Code revised 12/15/2015 
158063.1 

Exhibit B 
Disclosure Categories 
 
 Individuals holding designated positions must report their interests according to their assigned 
disclosure category(ies). 

Category 1  
 Designated employees in Category 1 must report all interests in real property located within the 
jurisdiction of the City of Lakeport or within two miles of the boundaries of the City of Lakeport or within 
two miles of any land owned or used by the City of Lakeport.  For the purposes of disclosure only, an 
interest in real property does not include the principal residence of the filer.  Category A filers must also 
report all interests in investments, business positions in business entities and sources of income, 
including gifts, loans, and travel payments from all sources. 

Category 2  
 Designated employees in Category 2 must report all interests in real property located within the 
jurisdiction of the City of Lakeport or within two miles of the boundaries of the City of Lakeport or within 
two miles of any land owned or used by the City of Lakeport.   

Category 3  
 Designated employees in Category 3 must report all interests in business positions in business 
entities and sources of income, including gifts, loans, and travel payments from sources that provide 
services, supplies, materials, machinery, or equipment of the type utilized by the City of Lakeport. 

Category 4 
 Designated employees in Category 4 must report all investments in business entities and all 
sources of personal and business entity income, including loans, gifts, and travel payments from sources 
that provide services, supplies, materials, machinery, or equipment of the type utilized by the 
designated position’s division or department.  

Category 5 
 Designated employees in Category 5 must report all investments in business entities and all 
sources of personal and business entity income, including loans, gifts, and travel payments, from sources 
that filed a claim against the agency during the previous two years or have a claim pending. 

Category 6 
 Designated employees in Category 6 must report all investments in business entities and all 
sources of personal and business entity income, including loans, gifts, and travel payments from sources 
of the type to request an entitlement to use agency property or facilities, including, but not limited to  a  
license, utility permit, or station vendor permit. 
 

ATTACHMENT 2



Meeting Date:  08/16/2016 Page 1 Agenda Item #IV.L. 
166603.1 

CITY OF LAKEPORT 
City Council  

City of Lakeport Municipal Sewer District  
Lakeport Redevelopment Successor Agency  

Lakeport Industrial Development Agency   
Municipal Financing Agency of Lakeport   

STAFF REPORT 

RE:   Conduct a Second Reading of an Ordinance Imposing a Transactions 
and Use Tax to be Administered by the State Board of Equalization 

MEETING DATE:   8/16/2016 

SUBMITTED BY:   Margaret Silveira, City Manager and Kelly Buendia, City Clerk 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:        Information only       Discussion      Action Item 

WHAT IS BEING ASKED OF THE CITY COUNCIL/BOARD: 

The City Council is asked to conduct a second reading of an ordinance imposing a transactions and use tax to be 
administered by the State Board of Equalization. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 

At the July 19, 2016 meeting, the City Council approved placement of a measure on the November 8, 2016 ballot 
for voter approval of a one cent, locally-controlled transactions and use tax (i.e., sales tax) which would become 
effective if adopted by 50 percent plus one vote of the Lakeport electorate.  At that time the Council introduced 
and conducted a public hearing for the attached ordinance codifying the proposed transactions and use tax 
measure at a rate of one cent, contingent upon authorization by the voters of the measure.  At the public 
hearing, two members of the public spoke in favor of the measure and one spoke in opposition of the measure.  
A second reading of the ordinance is requested to be consistent with Council procedure on ordinances. 

OPTIONS: 

The City Council could provide staff other direction. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 None  Budgeted Item?   Yes    No 

Budget Adjustment Needed?   Yes    No   If yes, amount of appropriation increase:   

Affected fund(s):  General Fund    Water OM Fund    Sewer OM Fund    Other:       

Comments:   

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

1. Move to conduct a second reading of an ordinance of the City Council of the City of Lakeport imposing a 
transactions and use tax of one cent to be administered by the State Board of Equalization. 

    Attachments:    1. An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Lakeport imposing a 
transaction and use tax to be administered by the State Board of 
Equalization 

2. Staff Report and Attachments from July 19, 2016  
 



ord_City 
(rev 06/2016) 
166274.1 

1 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO._________(2016) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKEPORT 
IMPOSING A TRANSACTIONS AND USE TAX TO BE 

ADMINISTERED BY THE STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 
 
THE PEOPLE OF THE CITY OF LAKEPORT, CALIFORNIA DO ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Chapter 3.29 of Title 3 of the Lakeport Municipal Code is hereby adopted to read as 
follows: 
 
 3.29.010. TITLE.  This ordinance shall be known as the Lakeport Public Safety and 
Essential City Services Transactions and Use Tax Ordinance.  The city of Lakeport hereinafter 
shall be called "City."  This ordinance shall be applicable in the incorporated territory of the City. 
 
 3.29.020. OPERATIVE DATE.  "Operative Date" means the first day of the first calendar 
quarter commencing more than 110 days after the adoption of this ordinance, the date of such 
adoption being as set forth below. 
 
 3.29.030. PURPOSE.  This ordinance is adopted to achieve the following, among other 
purposes, and directs that the provisions hereof be interpreted in order to accomplish those 
purposes: 
 
 A. To impose a retail transactions and use tax in accordance with the provisions of Part 1.6 
(commencing with Section 7251) of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code and Section 
7285.9 of Part 1.7 of Division 2 which authorizes the City to adopt this tax ordinance which shall 
be operative if a majority of the electors voting on the measure vote to approve the imposition of 
the tax at an election called for that purpose. 
 
 B. To adopt a retail transactions and use tax ordinance that incorporates provisions identical 
to those of the Sales and Use Tax Law of the State of California insofar as those provisions are not 
inconsistent with the requirements and limitations contained in Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the 
Revenue and Taxation Code. 
 
 C. To adopt a retail transactions and use tax ordinance that imposes a tax and provides a 
measure therefore that can be administered and collected by the State Board of Equalization in a 
manner that adapts itself as fully as practicable to, and requires the least possible deviation from, 
the existing statutory and administrative procedures followed by the State Board of Equalization 
in administering and collecting the California State Sales and Use Taxes. 
 
 D. To adopt a retail transactions and use tax ordinance that can be administered in a manner 
that will be, to the greatest degree possible, consistent with the provisions of Part 1.6 of Division 
2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, minimize the cost of collecting the transactions and use taxes, 
and at the same time, minimize the burden of record keeping upon persons subject to taxation 
under the provisions of this ordinance. 
 

ATTACHMENT 1



ord_City 
(rev 06/2016) 
166274.1 

2 

 
 3.29.050. CONTRACT WITH STATE.  Prior to the operative date, the City shall contract 
with the State Board of Equalization to perform all functions incident to the administration and 
operation of this transactions and use tax ordinance; provided, that if the City shall not have 
contracted with the State Board of Equalization prior to the operative date, it shall nevertheless so 
contract and in such a case the operative date shall be the first day of the first calendar quarter 
following the execution of such a contract. 
 
 3.29.060. TRANSACTIONS TAX RATE.  For the privilege of selling tangible personal 
property at retail, a tax is hereby imposed upon all retailers in the incorporated territory of the City 
at the rate of one percent (1%) of the gross receipts of any retailer from the sale of all tangible 
personal property sold at retail in said territory on and after the operative date of this ordinance. 
 
 3.29.070. PLACE OF SALE.  For the purposes of this ordinance, all retail sales are 
consummated at the place of business of the retailer unless the tangible personal property sold is 
delivered by the retailer or his agent to an out-of-state destination or to a common carrier for 
delivery to an out-of-state destination.  The gross receipts from such sales shall include delivery 
charges, when such charges are subject to the state sales and use tax, regardless of the place to 
which delivery is made.  In the event a retailer has no permanent place of business in the State or 
has more than one place of business, the place or places at which the retail sales are consummated 
shall be determined under rules and regulations to be prescribed and adopted by the State Board 
of Equalization. 
 
 3.29.080.  USE TAX RATE.  An excise tax is hereby imposed on the storage, use or other 
consumption in the City of tangible personal property purchased from any retailer on and after the 
operative date of this ordinance for storage, use or other consumption in said territory at the rate 
of one percent (1%) of the sales price of the property.  The sales price shall include delivery charges 
when such charges are subject to state sales or use tax regardless of the place to which delivery is 
made. 
 
 3.29.090. ADOPTION OF PROVISIONS OF STATE LAW.  Except as otherwise provided 
in this ordinance and except insofar as they are inconsistent with the provisions of Part 1.6 of 
Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, all of the provisions of Part 1 (commencing with 
Section 6001) of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code are hereby adopted and made a 
part of this ordinance as though fully set forth herein. 
 
 3.29.100. LIMITATIONS ON ADOPTION OF STATE LAW AND COLLECTION OF 
USE TAXES.  In adopting the provisions of Part 1 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation 
Code: 
 
  A. Wherever the State of California is named or referred to as the taxing agency, the 
name of this City shall be substituted therefor.  However, the substitution shall not be made when: 
 
   1.  The word "State" is used as a part of the title of the State Controller, State 
Treasurer, State Board of Equalization, State Treasury, or the Constitution of the State of 
California; 
 
   2.  The result of that substitution would require action to be taken by or against 
this City or any agency, officer, or employee thereof rather than by or against the State Board of 

ATTACHMENT 1



ord_City 
(rev 06/2016) 
166274.1 

3 

Equalization, in performing the functions incident to the administration or operation of this 
Ordinance. 
 
   3.  In those sections, including, but not necessarily limited to sections referring to 
the exterior boundaries of the State of California, where the result of the substitution would be to: 
 
    a.  Provide an exemption from this tax with respect to certain sales, storage, 
use or other consumption of tangible personal property which would not otherwise be exempt from 
this tax while such sales, storage, use or other consumption remain subject to tax by the State under 
the provisions of Part 1 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, or; 
 
    b.  Impose this tax with respect to certain sales, storage, use or other 
consumption of tangible personal property which would not be subject to tax by the state under 
the said provision of that code. 
 
   4. In Sections 6701, 6702 (except in the last sentence thereof), 6711, 6715, 6737, 
6797 or 6828 of the Revenue and Taxation Code. 
 
  B. The word "City" shall be substituted for the word "State" in the phrase "retailer 
engaged in business in this State" in Section 6203 and in the definition of that phrase in Section 
6203. 
 
 3.29.110. PERMIT NOT REQUIRED.  If a seller's permit has been issued to a retailer under 
Section 6067 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, an additional transactor's permit shall not be 
required by this ordinance. 
 
 3.29.120. EXEMPTIONS AND EXCLUSIONS.   
 
  A. There shall be excluded from the measure of the transactions tax and the use tax 
the amount of any sales tax or use tax imposed by the State of California or by any city, city and 
county, or county pursuant to the Bradley-Burns Uniform Local Sales and Use Tax Law or the 
amount of any state-administered transactions or use tax. 
 
  B. There are exempted from the computation of the amount of transactions tax the 
gross receipts from: 
 
   1. Sales of tangible personal property, other than fuel or petroleum products, to 
operators of aircraft to be used or consumed principally outside the county in which the sale is 
made and directly and exclusively in the use of such aircraft as common carriers of persons or 
property under the authority of the laws of this State, the United States, or any foreign government. 
 
 
   2. Sales of property to be used outside the City which is shipped to a point 
outside the City, pursuant to the contract of sale, by delivery to such point by the retailer or his 
agent, or by delivery by the retailer to a carrier for shipment to a consignee at such point.  For the 
purposes of this paragraph, delivery to a point outside the City shall be satisfied: 
 
    a. With respect to vehicles (other than commercial vehicles) subject to 
registration pursuant to Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 4000) of Division 3 of the Vehicle 

ATTACHMENT 1



ord_City 
(rev 06/2016) 
166274.1 

4 

Code, aircraft licensed in compliance with Section 21411 of the Public Utilities Code, and 
undocumented vessels registered under Division 3.5 (commencing with Section 9840) of the 
Vehicle Code by registration to an out-of-City address and by a declaration under penalty of 
perjury, signed by the buyer, stating that such address is, in fact, his or her principal place of 
residence; and 
 
    b. With respect to commercial vehicles, by registration to a place of 
business out-of-City and declaration under penalty of perjury, signed by the buyer, that the vehicle 
will be operated from that address. 
 
   3. The sale of tangible personal property if the seller is obligated to furnish the 
property for a fixed price pursuant to a contract entered into prior to the operative date of this 
ordinance. 
 
   4. A lease of tangible personal property which is a continuing sale of such 
property, for any period of time for which the lessor is obligated to lease the property for an amount 
fixed by the lease prior to the operative date of this ordinance. 
 
   5. For the purposes of subparagraphs (3) and (4) of this section, the sale or lease 
of tangible personal property shall be deemed not to be obligated pursuant to a contract or lease 
for any period of time for which any party to the contract or lease has the unconditional right to 
terminate the contract or lease upon notice, whether or not such right is exercised. 
 
  C. There are exempted from the use tax imposed by this ordinance, the storage, use 
or other consumption in this City of tangible personal property: 
 
   1. The gross receipts from the sale of which have been subject to a transactions 
tax under any state-administered transactions and use tax ordinance. 
 
   2. Other than fuel or petroleum products purchased by operators of aircraft and 
used or consumed by such operators directly and exclusively in the use of such aircraft as common 
carriers of persons or property for hire or compensation under a certificate of public convenience 
and necessity issued pursuant to the laws of this State, the United States, or any foreign 
government.  This exemption is in addition to the exemptions provided in Sections 6366 and 
6366.1 of the Revenue and Taxation Code of the State of California. 
 
   3. If the purchaser is obligated to purchase the property for a fixed price pursuant 
to a contract entered into prior to the operative date of this ordinance. 
 
   4. If the possession of, or the exercise of any right or power over, the tangible 
personal property arises under a lease which is a continuing purchase of such property for any 
period of time for which the lessee is obligated to lease the property for an amount fixed by a lease 
prior to the operative date of this ordinance. 
 
   5. For the purposes of subparagraphs (3) and (4) of this section, storage, use, or 
other consumption, or possession of, or exercise of any right or power over, tangible personal 
property shall be deemed not to be obligated pursuant to a contract or lease for any period of time 
for which any party to the contract or lease has the unconditional right to terminate the contract or 
lease upon notice, whether or not such right is exercised. 

ATTACHMENT 1



ord_City 
(rev 06/2016) 
166274.1 

5 

 
   6. Except as provided in subparagraph (7), a retailer engaged in business in the 
City shall not be required to collect use tax from the purchaser of tangible personal property, unless 
the retailer ships or delivers the property into the City or participates within the City in making the 
sale of the property, including, but not limited to, soliciting or receiving the order, either directly 
or indirectly, at a place of business of the retailer in the City or through any representative, agent, 
canvasser, solicitor, subsidiary, or person in the City under the authority of the retailer. 
 
   7. "A retailer engaged in business in the City" shall also include any retailer of 
any of the following:  vehicles subject to registration pursuant to Chapter 1 (commencing with 
Section 4000) of Division 3 of the Vehicle Code, aircraft licensed in compliance with Section 
21411 of the Public Utilities Code, or undocumented vessels registered under Division 3.5 
(commencing with Section 9840) of the Vehicle Code.  That retailer shall be required to collect 
use tax from any purchaser who registers or licenses the vehicle, vessel, or aircraft at an address 
in the City. 
 
  D. Any person subject to use tax under this ordinance may credit against that tax any 
transactions tax or reimbursement for transactions tax paid to a district imposing, or retailer liable 
for a transactions tax pursuant to Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code with 
respect to the sale to the person of the property the storage, use or other consumption of which is 
subject to the use tax. 
 
 3.29.130. AMENDMENTS. All amendments subsequent to the effective date of this 
ordinance to Part 1 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code relating to sales and use taxes 
and which are not inconsistent with Part 1.6 and Part 1.7 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation 
Code, and all amendments to Part 1.6 and Part 1.7 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation 
Code, shall automatically become a part of this ordinance, provided however, that no such 
amendment shall operate so as to affect the rate of tax imposed by this ordinance. 
 
 3.29.140. ENJOINING COLLECTION FORBIDDEN. No injunction or writ of 
mandate or other legal or equitable process shall issue in any suit, action or proceeding in any court 
against the State or the City, or against any officer of the State or the City, to prevent or enjoin the 
collection under this ordinance, or Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, of 
any tax or any amount of tax required to be collected. 
 
 3.29.150. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this ordinance or the application thereof 
to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the ordinance and the application 
of such provision to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 
 
 3.29.160. EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance relates to the levying and collecting 
of the City transactions and use taxes and shall take effect immediately. However, no tax imposed 
by this chapter shall be effective unless that tax has been approved by the voters of the City as 
required by section 2(b) of Article XIII C of the California Constitution and applicable law. 
 
 3.29.170. TERMINATION DATE. The authority to levy the tax imposed by this 
ordinance shall not expire until subsequent action, if any, by the voters of the City to repeal or 
amend this Ordinance. 
 

ATTACHMENT 1



ord_City 
(rev 06/2016) 
166274.1 

6 

 3.29.180. INDEPENDENT CITIZEN OVERSIGHT. A five-member Independent 
Citizens’ Advisory Committee will be created and shall meet annually to review the expenditure 
of revenues generated by the tax imposed by this chapter and to make recommendations to the 
City Council regarding those expenditures. Members of the Committee will be appointed to terms 
of not more than 4 years by the City Council. The Independent Citizens’ Advisory Committee 
shall meet publicly on at least a quarterly basis to review all revenues and expenditures of the 
transactions and use tax imposed by this chapter, review annual audit reports related to the tax, 
and make at least one written annual report to the City Council at a public meeting summarizing 
the Independent Citizens’ Advisory Committee’s findings and including any appropriate 
recommendations. The minutes of the meetings of Independent Citizens’ Advisory Committee 
shall be provided to the City Council and placed on the next available regular City Council meeting 
agenda for informational purposes.  
 
3.29.190. AUDIT AND REVIEW. The proceeds of the tax imposed by this chapter, as well 
as the expenditure thereof, shall be audited annually by an independent accounting firm. The City 
Council shall discuss the results of such audit at a meeting of the City Council that is open to the 
public. The report of such audit shall be posted on the City’s website. 
 
Section 2. The Mayor shall sign and the City Clerk shall attest to the passage of this 
Ordinance upon certification by the City Council of the results of the election approving this 
Ordinance. 
 
I hereby certify that the forgoing Ordinance was PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the 
People of the City of Lakeport, California voting on the 8th day of November, 2016. 
 
 
 
          ______________________________ 
          MARC SPILLMAN, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
________________________________ 
KELLY BUENDIA, City Clerk 
 
 INTRODUCED BY THE City Council of the City of Lakeport on July 19, 2016, at a regular 
meeting of the City Council of the City of Lakeport held on the 19th day of July, 2016, by the 
following vote: 
 
  AYES:  Mayor Spillman, Council Members Mattina, Parlet, Scheel and Turner 
 
  NOES:  None 
 
  ABSTAINING:  None   
 
  ABSENT:  None 
  
 FINAL PASSAGE  by the City Council occurred at a meeting thereof held on the 16th  day of  
August, 2016, by the following vote:  

ATTACHMENT 1



ord_City 
(rev 06/2016) 
166274.1 

7 

 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSTAINING: 
 
ABSENT:  
 

 
 
   
 MARC SPILLMAN, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________ 
KELLY BUENDIA, City Clerk 
 

ATTACHMENT 1



Meeting Date:  07/19/2016 Page 1 Agenda Item #VI.B.1. 
166603.1 

CITY OF LAKEPORT 

City Council  
City of Lakeport Municipal Sewer District  

Lakeport Redevelopment Successor Agency  
Lakeport Industrial Development Agency   
Municipal Financing Agency of Lakeport   

STAFF REPORT 

RE:   Consider Placing a Measure on the November 8, 2016 Ballot Asking 
Lakeport Voters to Approve a One Cent Transactions and Use 
(Sales) Tax 

MEETING DATE:   7/19/2016 

SUBMITTED BY:   Margaret Silveira, City Manager and Kelly Buendia, City Clerk 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:        Information only       Discussion      Action Item 

 

WHAT IS BEING ASKED OF THE CITY COUNCIL/BOARD: 

The City Council is asked to place a measure on the November 8, 2016 ballot for voter approval of a one cent, 
locally-controlled transactions and use tax (i.e., sales tax) which would become effective if adopted by 50 
percent plus one vote of the Lakeport electorate.  Then move to: 

1)  Introduce and conduct a public hearing for the attached ordinance codifying the proposed transactions and 
use tax measure at a rate of one cent, contingent upon authorization by the voters of the measure. 

2)  Adopt by four affirmative votes the attached resolution to: 

a) call the election on the transaction and use tax measure at a rate of one cent on the November 8, 
2016 ballot as a measure for voter approval; 

b) request the Lake County Board of Supervisors consent to the consolidation of this election with the 
statewide general election to be held on November 8, 2016 and direct the Registrar of Voters to provide 
all services necessary to conduct the election and print the transactions and use tax measure on the 
ballot; and 

c) provide deadlines for the primary and rebuttal arguments in favor of and against the proposed 
transaction and use tax, as well as a deadline for the impartial analysis. 

BACKGROUND 

Since 2008, Lakeport’s financial challenges have continued to increase largely due to events beyond the City’s 
control. Most notably, the state of California eliminated the City of Lakeport Redevelopment Agency resulting in 
a loss of approximately $900,000 annually to the City and greatly decreased the City’s ability to promote 
economic development and retail growth. The effects of the recession, continued State takeaways, falling 
property values, rising costs in long-term obligations and healthcare, and strained revenues have continued to 
take a toll on the City’s operating budget. 

ATTACHMENT 2



Meeting Date:  07/19/2016 Page 2 Agenda Item #VI.B.1. 
166603.1 

City staff has worked diligently to deal with these challenges, including making cuts and reductions to balance 
the budget, and has worked to conduct City operations as efficiently as possible. Additionally, over the past few 
years, authorized positions were eliminated or unfilled, including police officers, maintenance, and 
administrative staff. City staff made contributions to the City’s fiscal sustainability by forgoing raises, accepting 
furloughs, accepting a lower pension formula and paying higher contributions for insurance, even as their 
workloads have grown to cover the loss in productivity from the vacant positions throughout the City. Despite 
these efforts to control costs, the City’s revenue projections have not improved, creating concerns that threaten 
to erode the quality of service to residents and the accomplishments that have taken years to develop.  

In 2004, the voters of Lakeport had approved a half cent transactions and use tax (also known as “sales taxes”) 
known as Measure I that generates funding for the repair and maintenance of City streets, parks and community 
service facilities, and expansion of public services and programs.  Since its adoption, Measure I has generated 
$7.29 million in revenue and the City in turn has spent $12.5 million on its streets and related infrastructure.  
Measure I has been a tremendous resource, however the number of untouched road projects looms.  
Meanwhile, the City’s Police Department downsized to a bare bones operation.  With a statewide demand for 
police officers, Lakeport has been unable to compete.  Recruitment and retention of police officers has reached 
a critical juncture.   

In its goal setting session of February 26, 2016, the City Council set public safety as a top priority for the 
upcoming fiscal year.  With ongoing recruitment and retention difficulties and recognizing the ongoing needs for 
infrastructure improvements, the City Council asked staff to explore revenue enhancements to offset rising costs 
and new demands for service.   

In April of 2016, staff engaged Fairbank, Maslin, Maullin, Metz and Associates (FM3) to conduct a telephone 
survey of Lakeport residents to determine their service priorities and gauge support for a one cent sales tax 
ballot measure.  

 

PUBLIC OPINION AND COMMUNITY SURVEY RESULTS: 

At the June 7, 2016 City Council meeting, the Council was presented with the results of the completed FM3 
survey.   Public opinion survey results indicated strong community support for sales tax measure (71%) that 
would protect and maintain local services such as: 

 Paving and repairing streets 

 Maintaining police emergency response times 

 Retaining existing businesses 

 Attracting and retaining quality police officers 

 Attracting new businesses to the city 

 Providing programs for seniors and youth 

 Maintaining public parks and the pool 

The survey noted a general satisfaction in public safety but 76% dissatisfaction rating for paving and repairing of 
roads and streets.  The City Council then voted to move forward with vendor selection and work on a public 
education and outreach project related to a sales tax measure.  Staff advised that the Council would be 
presented with a resolution to place a measure on the ballot in an upcoming meeting. 

On April 25, 2016 the City Council sponsored a Town Hall Meeting to dialogue with the community on the 
current state of public safety and the Lakeport Police Department.  Community members responded 
overwhelmingly that while the Police Department was doing well, they were concerned about retention of 
police officers and rising crime and wanted to see an increase in police services. 

On July 12, 2016 the City Council sponsored a Town Hall Meeting.  The goal of this meeting was to further 
educate and engage the community regarding funding priorities with shrinking resources.  Attendees 

ATTACHMENT 2



Meeting Date:  07/19/2016 Page 3 Agenda Item #VI.B.1. 
166603.1 

communicated similarly to survey respondents, with roads and infrastructure and public safety remaining top 
priority. 

ANALYSIS 

Lakeport continues to face a variety of fiscal and service delivery challenges, further amplified by the state’s 
seeming indifference to local government concerns and a slow local economic recovery. Lakeport needs locally 
raised funds for local needs.  It must be self-sufficient.  Although the City’s primary operating fund, the General 
Fund, is in balance, the continued reliance on cost-cutting measures — including those generated by position 
vacancies — is taking a toll on the City’s ability to achieve its goals and provide basic services.    

As an example of the costs the City faces to provide basic services, the most recent estimates by the Local Area 
Planning Commission in 2015 to simply maintain Lakeport’s failing paved road infrastructure was over $2.5 
million annually.  For roads to receive a slight improvement, $3.8 million annually would be required.  
Meanwhile, Measure I on average has generated only $700,000 annually.   

With nearly 30,000 people living, working, or visiting Lakeport each day, a majority of the sales tax revenue is 
paid by non-residents, those using our streets, parks, and public safety services.  Staff estimates that a one cent 
(i.e. 1.0%) sales tax measure would generate approximately $1.5 million annually for the City’s General Fund.  
This revenue would be available for general governmental purposes, including, but not limited to, enhancing 
public safety services, road maintenance and rehabilitation, park and pool maintenance, economic development 
activities, and establishing recreation programs for youth and seniors.   

Based on the aforementioned retail trade area population, the tax burden on each individual equates to roughly 
$59 annually.  As an example of the effect of the tax on a transaction, a $100 dollar purchase of taxable items at 
a Lakeport retailer (or other retailer that delivers or ships to a City of Lakeport-proper mailing address) would 
result in an additional tax of $1.00.  As another example, a 20 gallon fill at the gas pump at $3.00 per gallon 
would result in an additional tax of 60 cents.  The benefit to each resident of the City of Lakeport (population of 
approximately 4,700) would be an additional $319 annually.  Currently, the City’s general fund spends over $805 
annually for every resident on public safety, roads, parks, pool, and other governmental purposes. 

Currently, the sales tax rate in the City of Lakeport is 8.0%.  The rate is scheduled to be decreased on December 
31, 2016 to 7.75%, as a quarter-cent to the state sunsets.  If this proposed measure is passed in November, the 
sales tax rate in the City of Lakeport would be 8.75%, which is comparable to the current sales tax rates in the 
cities of Healdsburg (8.75%), Rohnert Park (8.75%), and Santa Rosa (8.75%), to name a few.   

The current sales tax rate in the City of Clearlake is 8.0% with a measure on the November ballot for an 
additional full cent.  Further, the City of Ukiah has placed on the November ballot a sales tax measure that 
would raise its local rate to 8.375%. 

MEASURE OVERVIEW 

The revenue measure to be submitted to the voters, if approved, would establish a one-cent, or 1% local rate on 
retail transactions and sales.  General Fund revenues would increase by approximately $1.5 million annually. 
These funds will be locally-controlled, and not subject to State takeaways.   

The revenue would be collected at point of sale and subsequently remitted to the City by the State Board of 
Equalization.  The measure is approved if it receives at least a majority of affirmative votes of eligible City voters.  
The following question will be submitted to the voters whereby each voter may vote “yes” or “no” on the 
measure: 

 

Ballot Question: 

ATTACHMENT 2



Meeting Date:  07/19/2016 Page 4 Agenda Item #VI.B.1. 
166603.1 

“LAKEPORT PUBLIC SAFETY/ESSENTIAL CITY SERVICES MEASURE. To maintain/enhance general City services 
such as:  recruiting, hiring, retaining qualified police officers to improve neighborhood patrols/maintain 
response to property, burglary, violent crimes; paving/repairing local streets/potholes; enhancing business 
attraction/youth recreational programs; keeping Lakeport’s parks/pool safe/clean; shall the City enact a one-
cent sales tax until ended by voters, providing about $1,500,000 annually, requiring independent audits, citizens’ 
oversight, all revenues controlled locally be adopted?” 

NEXT STEPS: 

The City Council must introduce and adopt an ordinance containing very specific language required by the 
California State Board of Equalization that is necessary for the BOE to administer a new sales tax.  The ordinance 
will require a public hearing and two readings (introduction and adoption).  To meet elections timelines, staff is 
requesting that the public hearing and introduction take place at this meeting.  The ordinance adoption will be 
scheduled for the August 16, 2016 meeting. 

In addition, to place a sales tax measure on the ballot for approval by the voters, the City Council will need to 
approve by four affirmative votes a resolution calling the election on the transaction and use tax and requesting 
that Lake County provide election services related to the measure.  The resolution contains the ballot question 
and provides direction to the Registrar of Voters of Lake County.   The request will then be placed on the August 
9, 2016 Board of Supervisors meeting agenda to make the August 12 deadline required in the elections code. 

Both the ordinance and the resolution require a 2/3 majority vote of the City Council. 

OPTIONS: 

The City Council could decide not to place the sales tax on the ballot. 
The City Council could amend the ballot question or sales tax percentage. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

 None  $2,000.00 Budgeted Item?   Yes    No 

Budget Adjustment Needed?   Yes    No   If yes, amount of appropriation increase:  $2,000 

Affected fund(s):  General Fund    Water OM Fund    Sewer OM Fund    Other:       

Comments:  Staff is requesting an additional appropriation of $2,000.  Elections are billed at time and materials.  
If costs exceed budget estimates, staff may return for an additional budget adjustment. 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

1. Conduct Public Hearing then:  Move to introduce an ordinance of the City Council of the City of Lakeport 
imposing a transactions and use tax of one cent to be administered by the State Board of Equalization. 
 

2. Move to approve a  Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lakeport Calling For, Providing For, and 
Giving Notice of the General Municipal Election to be held in the City of Lakeport, County of Lake, State 
of California, on the 8th Day of November, 2016, for the Purpose of Submitting to the Voters, Measure Z 
to Levy A Transactions and Use Tax of One-Cent to Be Voted on at Said Election, Establishing Deadlines 
for Direct and Rebuttal Arguments, Providing for the Preparation of an Impartial Analysis, and 
Requesting Approval of the Lake County Board of Supervisors for Consolidation of this Election with the 
Statewide General Elections to be held on that date, and Requesting Election Services to be Provided by 
the County Elections Official 

 

    Attachments:    
1. Results of Survey on Community Issues in Lakeport 
2. An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Lakeport imposing a 

transaction and use tax to be administered by the State Board of 
Equalization 

ATTACHMENT 2



Meeting Date:  07/19/2016 Page 5 Agenda Item #VI.B.1. 
166603.1 

3. Resolution with Ordinance as Exhibit 

 

ATTACHMENT 2



 

 
12100 Wilshire Blvd Suite 350  1999 Harrison Street Suite 2020 

Los Angeles, CA   90025  Oakland, CA   94612 

Phone:      (310) 828-1183  Phone: (510) 451-9521 

Fax:          (310) 453-6562  Fax: (510) 451-0384 

 

TO: Interested Parties  

 

FROM: Dave Metz and Miranda Everitt 

 Fairbank, Maslin, Maullin, Metz & Associates 

 

RE: Results of a Survey on Community Issues in Lakeport 

 

DATE: July 19, 2016 

 

 

Fairbank, Maslin, Maullin, Metz & Associates (FM3) recently completed a community survey to 

provide the City with feedback regarding quality of life issues and service priorities.i The survey found 

that Lakeport voters clearly understand the City’s need for additional funding, and are 

overwhelmingly willing to support a simple majority requirement one-cent sales tax to fund City 

services. Repairing streets, maintaining public safety services, and economic development are top 

priorities in the community for City government. Key findings from the survey include: 

 

 About three-quarters see some need for additional City funding. As shown in Figure 1, about 

two in five (39 percent) of those surveyed said the City of Lakeport has a “great need” for additional 

funding to maintain essential services. Together with those who see “some need” for funding, nearly 

three-quarters (74%) believe the City needs revenue. 

 

Figure 1: Need for Additional Funding 

 

ATTACHMENT 2



Lakeport Survey Results – May 2016 – Page 2 

 Lakeport voters see a variety of urgent priorities in their community. Respondents were asked 

to rate the importance of specific services provided by City government. The clear top priority is 

paving and repairing streets and roads (with 89 percent rating it “extremely” or “very important”), 

followed by public safety and economic development. The priorities rated “extremely” or “very 

important” to more than three-quarters are listed in Figure 2 below. 

 

Figure 2: Priorities for Lakeport City Government 

 

City Service 
Extremely/Very 

Important 

Paving and repairing streets and roads 89% 

Maintaining police response to violent crimes 87% 

Maintaining police response to property crimes, such as burglaries 84% 

Attracting and retaining quality police officers 79% 

Retaining existing companies and businesses in the City 79% 

Recruiting companies and businesses to the City 77% 

 

 A potential finance measure has support from seven in ten (71%).  A general-purpose finance 

measure earns support from voters by a margin of more than two to one (Figure 3). Notably, more 

than two in five (43%) say they would “definitely” vote yes on the measure, while just 2 percent are 

undecided. 

 

Figure 3: Voter Support for a Simple Majority Requirement One-Cent Sales Tax 

 

 
 

Overall, the survey results indicate that Lakeport voters are clearly aware of the City’s need for 

additional funding to maintain essential services. They highly value road repairs, police protection, and 

economic development. Finally, Lakeport voters are willing to support a one-cent sales tax to fund 

those services at levels well in excess of the simple majority threshold. 

                                                 
i Methodology: From May 10-23, 2016, FM3 completed 178 online and telephone interviews (on both landlines and cell 

phones) with registered voters in Lakeport. The margin of sampling error for the study is +/-7.4% at the 95% confidence 

ATTACHMENT 2



Lakeport Survey Results – May 2016 – Page 3 

                                                                                                                                                                         
level; margins of error for population subgroups within the sample will be higher. Due to rounding, not all totals will sum to 

100%. 

ATTACHMENT 2



ord_City 
(rev 06/2016) 
166274.1 

1 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO._________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKEPORT 
IMPOSING A TRANSACTIONS AND USE TAX TO BE 

ADMINISTERED BY THE STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 
 
THE PEOPLE OF THE CITY OF LAKEPORT, CALIFORNIA DO ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Chapter 3.29 of Title 3 of the Lakeport Municipal Code is hereby adopted to read as 
follows: 
 
 3.29.010. TITLE.  This ordinance shall be known as the Lakeport Public Safety and 
Essential City Services Transactions and Use Tax Ordinance.  The city of Lakeport hereinafter 
shall be called "City."  This ordinance shall be applicable in the incorporated territory of the City. 
 
 3.29.020. OPERATIVE DATE.  "Operative Date" means the first day of the first calendar 
quarter commencing more than 110 days after the adoption of this ordinance, the date of such 
adoption being as set forth below. 
 
 3.29.030. PURPOSE.  This ordinance is adopted to achieve the following, among other 
purposes, and directs that the provisions hereof be interpreted in order to accomplish those 
purposes: 
 
 A. To impose a retail transactions and use tax in accordance with the provisions of Part 1.6 
(commencing with Section 7251) of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code and Section 
7285.9 of Part 1.7 of Division 2 which authorizes the City to adopt this tax ordinance which shall 
be operative if a majority of the electors voting on the measure vote to approve the imposition of 
the tax at an election called for that purpose. 
 
 B. To adopt a retail transactions and use tax ordinance that incorporates provisions identical 
to those of the Sales and Use Tax Law of the State of California insofar as those provisions are not 
inconsistent with the requirements and limitations contained in Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the 
Revenue and Taxation Code. 
 
 C. To adopt a retail transactions and use tax ordinance that imposes a tax and provides a 
measure therefore that can be administered and collected by the State Board of Equalization in a 
manner that adapts itself as fully as practicable to, and requires the least possible deviation from, 
the existing statutory and administrative procedures followed by the State Board of Equalization 
in administering and collecting the California State Sales and Use Taxes. 
 
 D. To adopt a retail transactions and use tax ordinance that can be administered in a manner 
that will be, to the greatest degree possible, consistent with the provisions of Part 1.6 of Division 
2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, minimize the cost of collecting the transactions and use taxes, 
and at the same time, minimize the burden of record keeping upon persons subject to taxation 
under the provisions of this ordinance. 
 

ATTACHMENT 2



ord_City 
(rev 06/2016) 
166274.1 

2 

 
 3.29.050. CONTRACT WITH STATE.  Prior to the operative date, the City shall contract 
with the State Board of Equalization to perform all functions incident to the administration and 
operation of this transactions and use tax ordinance; provided, that if the City shall not have 
contracted with the State Board of Equalization prior to the operative date, it shall nevertheless so 
contract and in such a case the operative date shall be the first day of the first calendar quarter 
following the execution of such a contract. 
 
 3.29.060. TRANSACTIONS TAX RATE.  For the privilege of selling tangible personal 
property at retail, a tax is hereby imposed upon all retailers in the incorporated territory of the City 
at the rate of one percent (1%) of the gross receipts of any retailer from the sale of all tangible 
personal property sold at retail in said territory on and after the operative date of this ordinance. 
 
 3.29.070. PLACE OF SALE.  For the purposes of this ordinance, all retail sales are 
consummated at the place of business of the retailer unless the tangible personal property sold is 
delivered by the retailer or his agent to an out-of-state destination or to a common carrier for 
delivery to an out-of-state destination.  The gross receipts from such sales shall include delivery 
charges, when such charges are subject to the state sales and use tax, regardless of the place to 
which delivery is made.  In the event a retailer has no permanent place of business in the State or 
has more than one place of business, the place or places at which the retail sales are consummated 
shall be determined under rules and regulations to be prescribed and adopted by the State Board 
of Equalization. 
 
 3.29.080.  USE TAX RATE.  An excise tax is hereby imposed on the storage, use or other 
consumption in the City of tangible personal property purchased from any retailer on and after the 
operative date of this ordinance for storage, use or other consumption in said territory at the rate 
of one percent (1%) of the sales price of the property.  The sales price shall include delivery charges 
when such charges are subject to state sales or use tax regardless of the place to which delivery is 
made. 
 
 3.29.090. ADOPTION OF PROVISIONS OF STATE LAW.  Except as otherwise provided 
in this ordinance and except insofar as they are inconsistent with the provisions of Part 1.6 of 
Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, all of the provisions of Part 1 (commencing with 
Section 6001) of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code are hereby adopted and made a 
part of this ordinance as though fully set forth herein. 
 
 3.29.100. LIMITATIONS ON ADOPTION OF STATE LAW AND COLLECTION OF 
USE TAXES.  In adopting the provisions of Part 1 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation 
Code: 
 
  A. Wherever the State of California is named or referred to as the taxing agency, the 
name of this City shall be substituted therefor.  However, the substitution shall not be made when: 
 
   1.  The word "State" is used as a part of the title of the State Controller, State 
Treasurer, State Board of Equalization, State Treasury, or the Constitution of the State of 
California; 
 
   2.  The result of that substitution would require action to be taken by or against 
this City or any agency, officer, or employee thereof rather than by or against the State Board of 

ATTACHMENT 2



ord_City 
(rev 06/2016) 
166274.1 

3 

Equalization, in performing the functions incident to the administration or operation of this 
Ordinance. 
 
   3.  In those sections, including, but not necessarily limited to sections referring to 
the exterior boundaries of the State of California, where the result of the substitution would be to: 
 
    a.  Provide an exemption from this tax with respect to certain sales, storage, 
use or other consumption of tangible personal property which would not otherwise be exempt from 
this tax while such sales, storage, use or other consumption remain subject to tax by the State under 
the provisions of Part 1 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, or; 
 
    b.  Impose this tax with respect to certain sales, storage, use or other 
consumption of tangible personal property which would not be subject to tax by the state under 
the said provision of that code. 
 
   4. In Sections 6701, 6702 (except in the last sentence thereof), 6711, 6715, 6737, 
6797 or 6828 of the Revenue and Taxation Code. 
 
  B. The word "City" shall be substituted for the word "State" in the phrase "retailer 
engaged in business in this State" in Section 6203 and in the definition of that phrase in Section 
6203. 
 
 3.29.110. PERMIT NOT REQUIRED.  If a seller's permit has been issued to a retailer under 
Section 6067 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, an additional transactor's permit shall not be 
required by this ordinance. 
 
 3.29.120. EXEMPTIONS AND EXCLUSIONS.   
 
  A. There shall be excluded from the measure of the transactions tax and the use tax 
the amount of any sales tax or use tax imposed by the State of California or by any city, city and 
county, or county pursuant to the Bradley-Burns Uniform Local Sales and Use Tax Law or the 
amount of any state-administered transactions or use tax. 
 
  B. There are exempted from the computation of the amount of transactions tax the 
gross receipts from: 
 
   1. Sales of tangible personal property, other than fuel or petroleum products, to 
operators of aircraft to be used or consumed principally outside the county in which the sale is 
made and directly and exclusively in the use of such aircraft as common carriers of persons or 
property under the authority of the laws of this State, the United States, or any foreign government. 
 
 
   2. Sales of property to be used outside the City which is shipped to a point 
outside the City, pursuant to the contract of sale, by delivery to such point by the retailer or his 
agent, or by delivery by the retailer to a carrier for shipment to a consignee at such point.  For the 
purposes of this paragraph, delivery to a point outside the City shall be satisfied: 
 
    a. With respect to vehicles (other than commercial vehicles) subject to 
registration pursuant to Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 4000) of Division 3 of the Vehicle 

ATTACHMENT 2



ord_City 
(rev 06/2016) 
166274.1 

4 

Code, aircraft licensed in compliance with Section 21411 of the Public Utilities Code, and 
undocumented vessels registered under Division 3.5 (commencing with Section 9840) of the 
Vehicle Code by registration to an out-of-City address and by a declaration under penalty of 
perjury, signed by the buyer, stating that such address is, in fact, his or her principal place of 
residence; and 
 
    b. With respect to commercial vehicles, by registration to a place of 
business out-of-City and declaration under penalty of perjury, signed by the buyer, that the vehicle 
will be operated from that address. 
 
   3. The sale of tangible personal property if the seller is obligated to furnish the 
property for a fixed price pursuant to a contract entered into prior to the operative date of this 
ordinance. 
 
   4. A lease of tangible personal property which is a continuing sale of such 
property, for any period of time for which the lessor is obligated to lease the property for an amount 
fixed by the lease prior to the operative date of this ordinance. 
 
   5. For the purposes of subparagraphs (3) and (4) of this section, the sale or lease 
of tangible personal property shall be deemed not to be obligated pursuant to a contract or lease 
for any period of time for which any party to the contract or lease has the unconditional right to 
terminate the contract or lease upon notice, whether or not such right is exercised. 
 
  C. There are exempted from the use tax imposed by this ordinance, the storage, use 
or other consumption in this City of tangible personal property: 
 
   1. The gross receipts from the sale of which have been subject to a transactions 
tax under any state-administered transactions and use tax ordinance. 
 
   2. Other than fuel or petroleum products purchased by operators of aircraft and 
used or consumed by such operators directly and exclusively in the use of such aircraft as common 
carriers of persons or property for hire or compensation under a certificate of public convenience 
and necessity issued pursuant to the laws of this State, the United States, or any foreign 
government.  This exemption is in addition to the exemptions provided in Sections 6366 and 
6366.1 of the Revenue and Taxation Code of the State of California. 
 
   3. If the purchaser is obligated to purchase the property for a fixed price pursuant 
to a contract entered into prior to the operative date of this ordinance. 
 
   4. If the possession of, or the exercise of any right or power over, the tangible 
personal property arises under a lease which is a continuing purchase of such property for any 
period of time for which the lessee is obligated to lease the property for an amount fixed by a lease 
prior to the operative date of this ordinance. 
 
   5. For the purposes of subparagraphs (3) and (4) of this section, storage, use, or 
other consumption, or possession of, or exercise of any right or power over, tangible personal 
property shall be deemed not to be obligated pursuant to a contract or lease for any period of time 
for which any party to the contract or lease has the unconditional right to terminate the contract or 
lease upon notice, whether or not such right is exercised. 

ATTACHMENT 2



ord_City 
(rev 06/2016) 
166274.1 

5 

 
   6. Except as provided in subparagraph (7), a retailer engaged in business in the 
City shall not be required to collect use tax from the purchaser of tangible personal property, unless 
the retailer ships or delivers the property into the City or participates within the City in making the 
sale of the property, including, but not limited to, soliciting or receiving the order, either directly 
or indirectly, at a place of business of the retailer in the City or through any representative, agent, 
canvasser, solicitor, subsidiary, or person in the City under the authority of the retailer. 
 
   7. "A retailer engaged in business in the City" shall also include any retailer of 
any of the following:  vehicles subject to registration pursuant to Chapter 1 (commencing with 
Section 4000) of Division 3 of the Vehicle Code, aircraft licensed in compliance with Section 
21411 of the Public Utilities Code, or undocumented vessels registered under Division 3.5 
(commencing with Section 9840) of the Vehicle Code.  That retailer shall be required to collect 
use tax from any purchaser who registers or licenses the vehicle, vessel, or aircraft at an address 
in the City. 
 
  D. Any person subject to use tax under this ordinance may credit against that tax any 
transactions tax or reimbursement for transactions tax paid to a district imposing, or retailer liable 
for a transactions tax pursuant to Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code with 
respect to the sale to the person of the property the storage, use or other consumption of which is 
subject to the use tax. 
 
 3.29.130. AMENDMENTS. All amendments subsequent to the effective date of this 
ordinance to Part 1 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code relating to sales and use taxes 
and which are not inconsistent with Part 1.6 and Part 1.7 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation 
Code, and all amendments to Part 1.6 and Part 1.7 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation 
Code, shall automatically become a part of this ordinance, provided however, that no such 
amendment shall operate so as to affect the rate of tax imposed by this ordinance. 
 
 3.29.140. ENJOINING COLLECTION FORBIDDEN. No injunction or writ of 
mandate or other legal or equitable process shall issue in any suit, action or proceeding in any court 
against the State or the City, or against any officer of the State or the City, to prevent or enjoin the 
collection under this ordinance, or Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, of 
any tax or any amount of tax required to be collected. 
 
 3.29.150. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this ordinance or the application thereof 
to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the ordinance and the application 
of such provision to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 
 
 3.29.160. EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance relates to the levying and collecting 
of the City transactions and use taxes and shall take effect immediately. However, no tax imposed 
by this chapter shall be effective unless that tax has been approved by the voters of the City as 
required by section 2(b) of Article XIII C of the California Constitution and applicable law. 
 
 3.29.170. TERMINATION DATE. The authority to levy the tax imposed by this 
ordinance shall not expire until subsequent action, if any, by the voters of the City to repeal or 
amend this Ordinance. 
 

ATTACHMENT 2



ord_City 
(rev 06/2016) 
166274.1 

6 

 3.29.180. INDEPENDENT CITIZEN OVERSIGHT. A five-member Independent 
Citizens’ Advisory Committee will be created and shall meet annually to review the expenditure 
of revenues generated by the tax imposed by this chapter and to make recommendations to the 
City Council regarding those expenditures. Members of the Committee will be appointed to terms 
of not more than 4 years by the City Council. The Independent Citizens’ Advisory Committee 
shall meet publicly on at least a quarterly basis to review all revenues and expenditures of the 
transactions and use tax imposed by this chapter, review annual audit reports related to the tax, 
and make at least one written annual report to the City Council at a public meeting summarizing 
the Independent Citizens’ Advisory Committee’s findings and including any appropriate 
recommendations. The minutes of the meetings of Independent Citizens’ Advisory Committee 
shall be provided to the City Council and placed on the next available regular City Council meeting 
agenda for informational purposes.  
 
3.29.190. AUDIT AND REVIEW. The proceeds of the tax imposed by this chapter, as well 
as the expenditure thereof, shall be audited annually by an independent accounting firm. The City 
Council shall discuss the results of such audit at a meeting of the City Council that is open to the 
public. The report of such audit shall be posted on the City’s website. 
 
Section 2. The Mayor shall sign and the City Clerk shall attest to the passage of this 
Ordinance upon certification by the City Council of the results of the election approving this 
Ordinance. 
 
I hereby certify that the forgoing Ordinance was PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the 
People of the City of Lakeport, California voting on the 8th day of November, 2016. 
 
 
 
          ______________________________ 
          MARC SPILLMAN, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
________________________________ 
KELLY BUENDIA, City Clerk 
 
 INTRODUCED BY THE City Council of the City of Lakeport on July 19, 2016, at a regular 
meeting of the City Council of the City of Lakeport held on the 19th day of July, 2016, by the 
following vote: 
 
  AYES: 
 
  NOES: 
 
  ABSTAINING:   
 
  ABSENT: 
  
 FINAL PASSAGE  by the City Council occurred at a meeting thereof held on the 16th  day of  
August, 2016, by the following vote:  

ATTACHMENT 2



ord_City 
(rev 06/2016) 
166274.1 

7 

 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSTAINING: 
 
ABSENT:  
 

 
 
   
 MARC SPILLMAN, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________ 
KELLY BUENDIA, City Clerk 
 

ATTACHMENT 2



 

 
166604.1 

 
RESOLUTION NO.  (2016) 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKEPORT CALLING FOR, 

PROVIDING FOR, AND GIVING NOTICE OF THE GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION TO 
BE HELD IN THE CITY OF LAKEPORT, COUNTY OF LAKE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ON 
THE 8TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2016, FOR THE PURPOSE OF SUBMITTING TO THE 

VOTERS, MEASURE Z TO LEVY A TRANSACTIONS AND USE TAX OF ONE CENT TO BE 
VOTED ON AT SAID ELECTION, ESTABLISHING DEADLINES FOR DIRECT AND 

REBUTTAL ARGUMENTS, PROVIDING FOR THE PREPARATION OF AN IMPARTIAL 
ANALYSIS, AND REQUESTING APPROVAL OF THE LAKE COUNTY BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS FOR CONSOLIDATION OF THIS ELECTION WITH THE STATEWIDE 
GENERAL ELECTIONS TO BE HELD ON THAT DATE, AND REQUESTING ELECTION 

SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE COUNTY ELECTIONS OFFICIAL 
 

   
WHEREAS, Lakeport is the heart of our region, with 30,000 people living working or visiting 
each day; and 
 
WHEREAS, due to budget cuts, the City of Lakeport is currently unable to fully staff its police 
force, and additional funding is needed to hire, attract and retain qualified police officers to 
reduce emergency response times, improve neighborhood patrols, provide sufficient staffing to 
ensure officer safety and keep our community safe; and 
 
WHEREAS, safe, clean neighborhoods are essential to maintaining local property values, but the 
City currently does not have the funding it needs to repair potholes, maintain parks and patrol 
neighborhood streets; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City needs a reliable, stable source of local funding that keeps taxpayer dollars 
local and cannot be taken by the State; and 
 
WHEREAS, California Revenue and Taxation Code section 7285.9 authorizes the City to levy a 
one cent transactions and use tax by ordinance following approval by two-thirds of the City 
Council and a majority vote of the qualified electors of the City voting in an election on the 
issue; and 
 
WHEREAS, any funds generated by a locally-enacted revenue measure will be subject to annual 
audits by an independent auditor and review by an independent citizens’ oversight committee 
at least annually to review the City’s expenditure of revenues generated by the transactions 
and use tax, if approved by the voters, review annual audit reports related to the tax; make 
written reports to the City Council summarizing the committee’s findings and including 
appropriate recommendations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the transactions and use tax would be levied in addition to the current sales tax and 
would be collected at the same time and in the same manner as the existing sales tax; and 
 

ATTACHMENT 2



 

 
166604.1 

WHEREAS, the levying of the transactions and use tax of one percent (1%) would not cause the 
overall transactions and use tax in the City to exceed two percent in accordance with California 
Revenue and Taxation Code section 7251.1; and 
 
WHEREAS, California Constitution Article XIII C, section 2(b), requires that any general tax 
imposed, extended, or increased by the City Council be submitted to the electorate and 
approved by a majority vote before becoming effective; and 
 
WHEREAS, California Government Code section 53724 requires this Resolution calling an 
election on the transactions and use tax be adopted by a two-thirds vote of the City Council and 
consolidated with a statewide primary election, a statewide general election or a regularly 
scheduled local election; and 
 
WHEREAS, California Elections Code section 9222 authorizes the City Council to submit to the 
voters a proposition for the enactment of any ordinance at an election held not less than 88 
days after the date of the order of election; and 
 
WHEREAS, a transactions and use tax is not a property tax on homeowners, and visitors to the 
Lakeport community will pay their fair share of the costs to use our parks, roads, and police; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, a transactions and use tax is not applied to food purchased as groceries or 
prescription medication. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Lakeport as follows: 
  
SECTION 1: CALL FOR GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION 

 
A. The General Municipal Election is hereby called and ordered to be held in the City of 

Lakeport, County of Lake, State of California, on the 8th day of November, 2016. 
 

B. The General Municipal Election hereby called and ordered to be held, shall be held and 
conducted, and the votes received and canvassed, and the returns thereof made, and 
the result hereof ascertained, determined, and declared as herein provided, and in all 
particulars not recited herein, according to the laws of the State of California, providing 
for Municipal Elections; and the polls for such election shall be and remain open during 
the time required by said laws. 
 

C. The interests of efficiency call for the consolidation of that election with the state 
general election to be held that same date, the Lakeport City Council hereby declares its 
intent to consolidate this general election with the Statewide General Election to be 
held on November 8, 2016. This resolution shall constitute the request for consolidation 
required by Elections Code section 10403 and the City Clerk shall forward a certified 
copy of this resolution to the Clerk of the Lake County Board of Supervisors not later 
than 99 days prior to November 8, 2016. 
 

ATTACHMENT 2



 

 
166604.1 

D. All voting places, precincts, and election officials within the boundaries of the City of 
Lakeport shall be the same as those for the general election. The City Council hereby 
acknowledges that the consolidated election will be held and conducted in the manner 
prescribed by Elections Code section 10418.  
 

E. The Lakeport City Council hereby requests approval of the Lake County Board of 
Supervisors to authorize the County Elections Official to provide election services to 
conduct said election. 
 

F. The City Clerk is hereby authorized to utilize the services of the Lake County Clerk for 
the conduct of the general election.  The City of Lakeport hereby agrees to pay the costs 
of those services as outlined by current policy of the Lake County Elections Division. 
 

 
SECTION 2: MEASURE TO BE VOTED ON AT GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION 
 

A. The City Council of the City of Lakeport does order submitted to the voters of the City of 
Lakeport at the General Municipal Election Measure Z as follows: 

 

LAKEPORT PUBLIC SAFETY/ESSENTIAL CITY SERVICES MEASURE. To 
maintain/enhance general City services including: recruiting, hiring, 
retaining qualified police officers to improve neighborhood patrols, 
maintain response to property, burglary, violent crimes; 
paving/repairing local streets/potholes; enhancing business 
attraction/youth recreational programs; keeping Lakeport’s 
parks/pool safe and clean; shall the ordinance to enact a one-cent 
sales tax until ended by voters, providing about $1,500,000 
annually, requiring independent audits, citizens’ oversight, all 
revenues controlled locally be adopted? 

 
YES 

 
 
 
 

NO 

 
B. Vote Required for Passage of Measure Z:   Measure Z shall be submitted to the voters 

with spaces provided on the ballot form whereby each voter may vote “yes” or “no” on 
the measure.  This measure shall be considered approved if a simple majority plus one 
of the voters in said election cast a “yes” vote.     

 
C. Measure Z Form:  The full text of the ordinance authorizing the transactions and use tax 

to be approved by the voters, entitled the “Lakeport Public Safety/Essential City Services 
Measure” is attached as Exhibit “A” to this Resolution. The full text of the ordinance 
shall be printed in the Voter Information Pamphlet..   

 
SECTION 3. ARGUMENTS FOR AND AGAINST THE MEASURE AND IMPARTIAL ANALYSIS. 
 

A. Primary Arguments.  The City Council hereby establishes Friday, August 5, 2016, at 
5:00 p.m. as the deadline for submission to the City Clerk of direct arguments in favor or 
against Measure Z.  All primary arguments may not exceed 300 words in length under 
Elections Code section 9282, and shall be accompanied by the printed name(s) and 

ATTACHMENT 2



 

 
166604.1 

signature(s) of the author(s) submitting it, in accordance with Article 4, Chapter 3, 
Division 9 of the California Elections Code. The argument may be changed or withdrawn 
until and including the above date, after which no arguments for the Measure may be 
submitted to the City Clerk. All primary arguments submitted shall comply with Elections 
Code Section 9600 et seq. If more than one argument for or against the Measure is 
received, the City Clerk shall select the argument for printing and distribution to the 
voters giving preference and priority in accordance with California Elections Code 
Section 9287. 

 
B. Rebuttal Arguments.  The City Council hereby establishes, Monday, August 15, 2016, at 

5:00 p.m. as the deadline for submission to the City Clerk of rebuttal arguments in favor 
and against Measure Z.   

 
a. Pursuant to California Elections Code Section 9285, subdivision (b), the City 

Council hereby adopts the provisions of California Elections Code Section 9285, 
subdivision (a), relating to rebuttal arguments for the Measure only for the 
November 8, 2016 election and thereafter repeals this sub-section 
 

b. The author or a majority of the authors of an argument relating to the Measure 
may prepare and submit a rebuttal argument or may authorize in writing any 
other person or persons to prepare, submit, or sign the rebuttal argument. The 
rebuttal argument shall not exceed 250 words and shall not be signed by more 
than five (5) persons that shall appear therewith. All rebuttal arguments 
submitted shall comply with Elections Code Section 9600 et seq.  

 
C. Impartial Analysis.  The City Clerk is directed to transmit copies of Measure Z to the City 

Attorney who shall prepare an impartial analysis of the measure (not to exceed 500 
words) showing the effect of the measures on the existing law and the operation of the 
measure and file same with the City Clerk no later than Monday, August 15, 2016 at 
5:00 pm. 

 
SECTION 4. CEQA 
 
The adoption of this Resolution is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code §§ 21000 et seq. (“CEQA”) and 14 Cal. Code Reg. §§ 15000 et seq. (“CEQA 
Guidelines”). The calling and noticing of a General Municipal Election is not a project within the 
meaning of CEQA Guidelines Section 15378. The transactions and use tax submitted to the 
voters is a general tax that can be used for any governmental purpose; it is not a commitment 
to any particular action or actions. As such, under CEQA Guidelines Section 15378(b)(4), the tax 
is not a project within the meaning of CEQA because it creates a government funding 
mechanism that does not involve any commitment to any specific project that may result in a 
potentially significant physical impact on the environment.  
 

ATTACHMENT 2



 

 
166604.1 

SECTION 5. SEVERABILITY 
 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Resolution or its 
application to any person or circumstance is for any reason held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Resolution or its application to other 
persons and circumstances. The City Council of the City of Lakeport hereby declares that it 
would have adopted this Resolution and each section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or 
portion thereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, 
clauses, phrases, or portions be declared invalid or unconstitutional and, to that end, the 
provisions hereof are hereby declared to be severable. 
 
SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 
SECTION 7. CERTIFICATION AND NOTICE 
 
The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this Resolution, and give notice of this 
measure to be voted upon in the manner provided by the Elections Code of the State of 
California. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lakeport, County of Lake, State of 
California on this 19th day of July, 2016, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:    
NOES:  
ABSENT:   
ABSTAINING:  
 
 ______________________________ 
 MARC SPILLMAN, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ ______________________________ 
KELLY BUENDIA, CITY CLERK DAVID RUDERMAN, CITY ATTORNEY 

ATTACHMENT 2



 

 
166604.1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO._________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKEPORT 

IMPOSING A TRANSACTIONS AND USE TAX TO BE 

ADMINISTERED BY THE STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 
 

THE PEOPLE OF THE CITY OF LAKEPORT, CALIFORNIA DO ORDAIN AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. Chapter 3.29 of Title 3 of the Lakeport Municipal Code is hereby adopted to read as 

follows: 

 

 3.29.010. TITLE.  This ordinance shall be known as the Lakeport Public Safety and 

Essential City Services Transactions and Use Tax Ordinance.  The city of Lakeport hereinafter 

shall be called "City."  This ordinance shall be applicable in the incorporated territory of the City. 

 

 3.29.020. OPERATIVE DATE.  "Operative Date" means the first day of the first calendar 

quarter commencing more than 110 days after the adoption of this ordinance, the date of such 

adoption being as set forth below. 

 

 3.29.030. PURPOSE.  This ordinance is adopted to achieve the following, among other 

purposes, and directs that the provisions hereof be interpreted in order to accomplish those 

purposes: 

 

 A. To impose a retail transactions and use tax in accordance with the provisions of Part 1.6 

(commencing with Section 7251) of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code and Section 

7285.9 of Part 1.7 of Division 2 which authorizes the City to adopt this tax ordinance which shall 

be operative if a majority of the electors voting on the measure vote to approve the imposition of 

the tax at an election called for that purpose. 

 

 B. To adopt a retail transactions and use tax ordinance that incorporates provisions identical 

to those of the Sales and Use Tax Law of the State of California insofar as those provisions are not 

inconsistent with the requirements and limitations contained in Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the 

Revenue and Taxation Code. 

 

 C. To adopt a retail transactions and use tax ordinance that imposes a tax and provides a 

measure therefore that can be administered and collected by the State Board of Equalization in a 

manner that adapts itself as fully as practicable to, and requires the least possible deviation from, 

the existing statutory and administrative procedures followed by the State Board of Equalization 

in administering and collecting the California State Sales and Use Taxes. 

 

 D. To adopt a retail transactions and use tax ordinance that can be administered in a manner 

that will be, to the greatest degree possible, consistent with the provisions of Part 1.6 of Division 

2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, minimize the cost of collecting the transactions and use taxes, 

ATTACHMENT 2



 

 
166604.1 

and at the same time, minimize the burden of record keeping upon persons subject to taxation 

under the provisions of this ordinance. 

 

 

 3.29.050. CONTRACT WITH STATE.  Prior to the operative date, the City shall contract 

with the State Board of Equalization to perform all functions incident to the administration and 

operation of this transactions and use tax ordinance; provided, that if the City shall not have 

contracted with the State Board of Equalization prior to the operative date, it shall nevertheless so 

contract and in such a case the operative date shall be the first day of the first calendar quarter 

following the execution of such a contract. 

 

 3.29.060. TRANSACTIONS TAX RATE.  For the privilege of selling tangible personal 

property at retail, a tax is hereby imposed upon all retailers in the incorporated territory of the City 

at the rate of one percent (1%) of the gross receipts of any retailer from the sale of all tangible 

personal property sold at retail in said territory on and after the operative date of this ordinance. 

 

 3.29.070. PLACE OF SALE.  For the purposes of this ordinance, all retail sales are 

consummated at the place of business of the retailer unless the tangible personal property sold is 

delivered by the retailer or his agent to an out-of-state destination or to a common carrier for 

delivery to an out-of-state destination.  The gross receipts from such sales shall include delivery 

charges, when such charges are subject to the state sales and use tax, regardless of the place to 

which delivery is made.  In the event a retailer has no permanent place of business in the State or 

has more than one place of business, the place or places at which the retail sales are consummated 

shall be determined under rules and regulations to be prescribed and adopted by the State Board 

of Equalization. 

 

 3.29.080.  USE TAX RATE.  An excise tax is hereby imposed on the storage, use or other 

consumption in the City of tangible personal property purchased from any retailer on and after the 

operative date of this ordinance for storage, use or other consumption in said territory at the rate 

of one percent (1%) of the sales price of the property.  The sales price shall include delivery charges 

when such charges are subject to state sales or use tax regardless of the place to which delivery is 

made. 

 

 3.29.090. ADOPTION OF PROVISIONS OF STATE LAW.  Except as otherwise provided 

in this ordinance and except insofar as they are inconsistent with the provisions of Part 1.6 of 

Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, all of the provisions of Part 1 (commencing with 

Section 6001) of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code are hereby adopted and made a 

part of this ordinance as though fully set forth herein. 

 

 3.29.100. LIMITATIONS ON ADOPTION OF STATE LAW AND COLLECTION OF 

USE TAXES.  In adopting the provisions of Part 1 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation 

Code: 

 

  A. Wherever the State of California is named or referred to as the taxing agency, the 

name of this City shall be substituted therefor.  However, the substitution shall not be made when: 

 

   1.  The word "State" is used as a part of the title of the State Controller, State 

Treasurer, State Board of Equalization, State Treasury, or the Constitution of the State of 

California; 

ATTACHMENT 2



 

 
166604.1 

 

   2.  The result of that substitution would require action to be taken by or against 

this City or any agency, officer, or employee thereof rather than by or against the State Board of 

Equalization, in performing the functions incident to the administration or operation of this 

Ordinance. 

 

   3.  In those sections, including, but not necessarily limited to sections referring to 

the exterior boundaries of the State of California, where the result of the substitution would be to: 

 

    a.  Provide an exemption from this tax with respect to certain sales, storage, 

use or other consumption of tangible personal property which would not otherwise be exempt from 

this tax while such sales, storage, use or other consumption remain subject to tax by the State under 

the provisions of Part 1 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, or; 

 

    b.  Impose this tax with respect to certain sales, storage, use or other 

consumption of tangible personal property which would not be subject to tax by the state under 

the said provision of that code. 

 

   4. In Sections 6701, 6702 (except in the last sentence thereof), 6711, 6715, 6737, 

6797 or 6828 of the Revenue and Taxation Code. 

 

  B. The word "City" shall be substituted for the word "State" in the phrase "retailer 

engaged in business in this State" in Section 6203 and in the definition of that phrase in Section 

6203. 

 

 3.29.110. PERMIT NOT REQUIRED.  If a seller's permit has been issued to a retailer under 

Section 6067 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, an additional transactor's permit shall not be 

required by this ordinance. 

 

 3.29.120. EXEMPTIONS AND EXCLUSIONS.   

 

  A. There shall be excluded from the measure of the transactions tax and the use tax 

the amount of any sales tax or use tax imposed by the State of California or by any city, city and 

county, or county pursuant to the Bradley-Burns Uniform Local Sales and Use Tax Law or the 

amount of any state-administered transactions or use tax. 

 

  B. There are exempted from the computation of the amount of transactions tax the 

gross receipts from: 

 

   1. Sales of tangible personal property, other than fuel or petroleum products, to 

operators of aircraft to be used or consumed principally outside the county in which the sale is 

made and directly and exclusively in the use of such aircraft as common carriers of persons or 

property under the authority of the laws of this State, the United States, or any foreign government. 

 

 

   2. Sales of property to be used outside the City which is shipped to a point 

outside the City, pursuant to the contract of sale, by delivery to such point by the retailer or his 

agent, or by delivery by the retailer to a carrier for shipment to a consignee at such point.  For the 

purposes of this paragraph, delivery to a point outside the City shall be satisfied: 

ATTACHMENT 2



 

 
166604.1 

 

    a. With respect to vehicles (other than commercial vehicles) subject to 

registration pursuant to Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 4000) of Division 3 of the Vehicle 

Code, aircraft licensed in compliance with Section 21411 of the Public Utilities Code, and 

undocumented vessels registered under Division 3.5 (commencing with Section 9840) of the 

Vehicle Code by registration to an out-of-City address and by a declaration under penalty of 

perjury, signed by the buyer, stating that such address is, in fact, his or her principal place of 

residence; and 

 

    b. With respect to commercial vehicles, by registration to a place of 

business out-of-City and declaration under penalty of perjury, signed by the buyer, that the vehicle 

will be operated from that address. 

 

   3. The sale of tangible personal property if the seller is obligated to furnish the 

property for a fixed price pursuant to a contract entered into prior to the operative date of this 

ordinance. 

 

   4. A lease of tangible personal property which is a continuing sale of such 

property, for any period of time for which the lessor is obligated to lease the property for an amount 

fixed by the lease prior to the operative date of this ordinance. 

 

   5. For the purposes of subparagraphs (3) and (4) of this section, the sale or lease 

of tangible personal property shall be deemed not to be obligated pursuant to a contract or lease 

for any period of time for which any party to the contract or lease has the unconditional right to 

terminate the contract or lease upon notice, whether or not such right is exercised. 

 

  C. There are exempted from the use tax imposed by this ordinance, the storage, use 

or other consumption in this City of tangible personal property: 

 

   1. The gross receipts from the sale of which have been subject to a transactions 

tax under any state-administered transactions and use tax ordinance. 

 

   2. Other than fuel or petroleum products purchased by operators of aircraft and 

used or consumed by such operators directly and exclusively in the use of such aircraft as common 

carriers of persons or property for hire or compensation under a certificate of public convenience 

and necessity issued pursuant to the laws of this State, the United States, or any foreign 

government.  This exemption is in addition to the exemptions provided in Sections 6366 and 

6366.1 of the Revenue and Taxation Code of the State of California. 

 

   3. If the purchaser is obligated to purchase the property for a fixed price pursuant 

to a contract entered into prior to the operative date of this ordinance. 

 

   4. If the possession of, or the exercise of any right or power over, the tangible 

personal property arises under a lease which is a continuing purchase of such property for any 

period of time for which the lessee is obligated to lease the property for an amount fixed by a lease 

prior to the operative date of this ordinance. 

 

   5. For the purposes of subparagraphs (3) and (4) of this section, storage, use, or 

other consumption, or possession of, or exercise of any right or power over, tangible personal 

ATTACHMENT 2



 

 
166604.1 

property shall be deemed not to be obligated pursuant to a contract or lease for any period of time 

for which any party to the contract or lease has the unconditional right to terminate the contract or 

lease upon notice, whether or not such right is exercised. 

 

   6. Except as provided in subparagraph (7), a retailer engaged in business in the 

City shall not be required to collect use tax from the purchaser of tangible personal property, unless 

the retailer ships or delivers the property into the City or participates within the City in making the 

sale of the property, including, but not limited to, soliciting or receiving the order, either directly 

or indirectly, at a place of business of the retailer in the City or through any representative, agent, 

canvasser, solicitor, subsidiary, or person in the City under the authority of the retailer. 

 

   7. "A retailer engaged in business in the City" shall also include any retailer of 

any of the following:  vehicles subject to registration pursuant to Chapter 1 (commencing with 

Section 4000) of Division 3 of the Vehicle Code, aircraft licensed in compliance with Section 

21411 of the Public Utilities Code, or undocumented vessels registered under Division 3.5 

(commencing with Section 9840) of the Vehicle Code.  That retailer shall be required to collect 

use tax from any purchaser who registers or licenses the vehicle, vessel, or aircraft at an address 

in the City. 

 

  D. Any person subject to use tax under this ordinance may credit against that tax any 

transactions tax or reimbursement for transactions tax paid to a district imposing, or retailer liable 

for a transactions tax pursuant to Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code with 

respect to the sale to the person of the property the storage, use or other consumption of which is 

subject to the use tax. 

 

 3.29.130. AMENDMENTS. All amendments subsequent to the effective date of this 

ordinance to Part 1 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code relating to sales and use taxes 

and which are not inconsistent with Part 1.6 and Part 1.7 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation 

Code, and all amendments to Part 1.6 and Part 1.7 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation 

Code, shall automatically become a part of this ordinance, provided however, that no such 

amendment shall operate so as to affect the rate of tax imposed by this ordinance. 

 

 3.29.140. ENJOINING COLLECTION FORBIDDEN. No injunction or writ of 

mandate or other legal or equitable process shall issue in any suit, action or proceeding in any court 

against the State or the City, or against any officer of the State or the City, to prevent or enjoin the 

collection under this ordinance, or Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, of 

any tax or any amount of tax required to be collected. 

 

 3.29.150. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this ordinance or the application thereof 

to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the ordinance and the application 

of such provision to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 

 

 3.29.160. EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance relates to the levying and collecting 

of the City transactions and use taxes and shall take effect immediately. However, no tax imposed 

by this chapter shall be effective unless that tax has been approved by the voters of the City as 

required by section 2(b) of Article XIII C of the California Constitution and applicable law. 

 

ATTACHMENT 2



 

 
166604.1 

 3.29.170. TERMINATION DATE. The authority to levy the tax imposed by this 

ordinance shall not expire until subsequent action, if any, by the voters of the City to repeal or 

amend this Ordinance. 

 

 3.29.180. INDEPENDENT CITIZEN OVERSIGHT. A five-member Independent 

Citizens’ Advisory Committee will be created and shall meet annually to review the expenditure 

of revenues generated by the tax imposed by this chapter and to make recommendations to the 

City Council regarding those expenditures. Members of the Committee will be appointed to terms 

of not more than 4 years by the City Council. The Independent Citizens’ Advisory Committee 

shall meet publicly on at least a quarterly basis to review all revenues and expenditures of the 

transactions and use tax imposed by this chapter, review annual audit reports related to the tax, 

and make at least one written annual report to the City Council at a public meeting summarizing 

the Independent Citizens’ Advisory Committee’s findings and including any appropriate 

recommendations. The minutes of the meetings of Independent Citizens’ Advisory Committee 

shall be provided to the City Council and placed on the next available regular City Council meeting 

agenda for informational purposes.  

 

3.29.190. AUDIT AND REVIEW. The proceeds of the tax imposed by this chapter, as well 

as the expenditure thereof, shall be audited annually by an independent accounting firm. The City 

Council shall discuss the results of such audit at a meeting of the City Council that is open to the 

public. The report of such audit shall be posted on the City’s website. 

 

Section 2. The Mayor shall sign and the City Clerk shall attest to the passage of this 

Ordinance upon certification by the City Council of the results of the election approving this 

Ordinance. 

 

I hereby certify that the forgoing Ordinance was PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the 

People of the City of Lakeport, California voting on the 8th day of November, 2016. 

 

 

 

          ______________________________ 

          MARC SPILLMAN, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

________________________________ 

KELLY BUENDIA, City Clerk 

 

 INTRODUCED BY THE City Council of the City of Lakeport on July 19, 2016, at a regular 

meeting of the City Council of the City of Lakeport held on the 19th day of July, 2016, by the 

following vote: 

 

  AYES: 

 

  NOES: 

 

  ABSTAINING:   

 

ATTACHMENT 2



 

 
166604.1 

  ABSENT: 

  

 FINAL PASSAGE  by the City Council occurred at a meeting thereof held on the 16th  day of  

August, 2016, by the following vote:  

 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAINING: 

 

ABSENT:  

 

 

 

   

 MARC SPILLMAN, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

______________________________ 

KELLY BUENDIA, City Clerk 

 
 

 

ATTACHMENT 2



Meeting Date:  08/16/2016 Page 1 Agenda Item #VI.A.1. 

CITY OF LAKEPORT 
City Council  

City of Lakeport Municipal Sewer District  
Lakeport Redevelopment Successor Agency  

Lakeport Industrial Development Agency   
Municipal Financing Agency of Lakeport   

STAFF REPORT 

RE:   School Resource Officer contract MEETING DATE:   08-16-16 

SUBMITTED BY:   Lt. Ferguson 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:        Information only       Discussion      Action Item 

WHAT IS BEING ASKED OF THE CITY COUNCIL/BOARD: 

The City Council is being asked to approve a contract between the Lakeport Unified School District and the 
City of Lakeport/Police Department.  The contract will be managed jointly by the school and police 
administratiors and will serve as the MOU between the school district and the City for the service of a 
School Resource Officer.  

BACKGROUND:   

The Lakeport Unified School District has not had a School Resource Officer assigned to it's campuses since 
October of 2012.  Prior to October of 2012, the Lakeport Police Department provided a School Resource 
Officer to the school district dating back to 1995 but has been unable to do so based on staffing issues and 
budget constraints.  

DISCUSSION: 

In 2016 the City of Lakeport and Lakeport Unified School District have worked together to budget a 
position for the 2016/2017 fiscal year. With both the school and city budget's already adopted for the 
upcoming fiscal year we are seeking approval of the MOU/Contract.  

This contract is being presented to the Lakeport Unified School District Board on August 11th and is 
expected to be approved at that time.   

The terms of the MOU may need to be pro-rated to reflect any adjustments to the start date of the School 
Resource Officer. 

OPTIONS: 

Accept and approve MOU/Contract 

Do not accept/approve MOU/Contract 

Return to staff for additional comments/information 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

  None   $        Account Number:        Comments:  Already 
budgeted in 16/17 fiscal year. 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

Move to approve the attached MOU and authorize the City Manager to sign. 



Meeting Date:  08/16/2016 Page 2 Agenda Item #VI.A.1. 

 

    Attachments: 1. Memorandum of Understanding between the Lakeport Unified School 
District and the City of Lakeport for the services of a School Resource 
Officer. 

 



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1


	08/16/2016 Agenda
	Consent Agenda
	07/12/2016 Special Meeting Minutes
	07/19/2016 Minutes
	08/05/2016 Warrants
	Application 2016-020 - Fair Parade
	Application 2016-021 - Splash-In
	Application 2016-022 - Catfish Derby
	2016/17 MOU:  Lakeport Employees Association
	Appropriations Limit
	Lease for Fair Parking
	Designated Disabled Fair Parking
	Conflict of Interest Code Review
	Second Reading:  Sales Tax Measure

	Council Business
	School Resource Officer




